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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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ITEREEREEBFMRRETHT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

OVERVIEW
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s revenue

amounted to approximately HK$513.6 million, representing a
decrease of 11.6% as compared with approximately HK$581.2
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in
commission income from securities broking and the decrease in
interest income from margin financing business during the year.
Operating expenses such as commission expenses and CCASS
settlement expenses generally decreased in line with the decrease

in revenue.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company during the
year was approximately HK$341.9 million (2016: HK$463.7
million). The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the
result from broking and margin financing segment on top of
the improved performance of money lending and investments
segment. Moreover, the separate listing of the major subsidiary of
the Group, Get Nice Financial Group Limited (“GNFG”, stock
code: 1469) has been completed on 8 April 2016. Therefore,
approximately 27% of profit of GNFG during the year has been
shared to non-controlling sharcholders of GNFG leading to a
decrease in profit attributable to owners of the Company by
HK$74 million.

Basic earnings per share decreased to HK4.56 cents (2016:
HK6.97 cents) as a result of decrease in profit and increase in
issued ordinary shares of the Company from approximately 6.7

billion shares to approximately 8 billion shares during the year.
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TEREEREEES WA
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Market review

During the first half of the year under review, the Hong Kong
stock market had been faced with the worries over negative
factors relating to the Mainland China economy including over
gearing of the A-share market, heightened RMB depreciation
risks, and rising credit default risks. Market indexes had been
sensitive to illustrate that China’s slowdown is worsening and
these all exerted downward pressure on the performance of the

Hong Kong stock market.

The negative investment sentiment had been further hit hard
by the economic uncertainties prevailing in global markets.
The interest rate hike of the United States created uncertainty,
the European and the Japanese central banks are increasing
their quantitative easing measures, the UK referendum on
European Union membership caught the world by surprise
and the withdraw from the European Union has ushered more

uncertainty in the European market.

In the second half of the year under review, the investor
confidence in Hong Kong still fell over uncertainties but slightly
improved. The Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect launched
in December 2016 in addition to the initiative of “One Belt One
Road” leading to expectation of opportunities in the Hong Kong
capital market given the mature and comprehensive legal system

and financial platform.

Moreover, the market response on the kick off of the interest
rate hike and Brexit referendum was not as negative as expected.
The focus of investors moved from Brexit referendum to the
presidential election in United States. Republican candidate
Donald Trump was elected as the 45th president of the United
States unexpectedly leading to fluctuation of financial market
for a short period of time. However, the market was expecting
a favorable tax reform stimulating the economy and massive
infrastructure investment creating employment opportunities

after the election despite certain controversial policies of Trump.

AND ANALYSIS
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ITEREEREEBFMRRETHT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

Overall, the growth of the Hong Kong stock market had been
stifled by Mainland market turbulence and unstable global
financial landscape during the year. Investors had chosen to flee
the highly volatile stock markets to avoid suffering investment
losses during this deteriorating financial environment. The
average daily turnover of the Hong Kong stock market for the
year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$67.4 billion, a 34.2% fall
compared to HK$102.5 billion for the last year. Nevertheless,
Hang Seng Index rose from 20,777 points on 31 March 2016
to 24,112 points on 31 March 2017, representing an increase
of 16.1% and a positive market outlook at the end of the first
quarter of 2017.

The property market in Hong Kong was exuberant during the
year under review. Due to tight local housing demand-supply
balance and influx of capital, local property prices were
out of line with economic fundamentals. To stabilise the
property market, the Hong Kong Government introduced the
demand-side management measure in November 2016. Despite
so, the overall property price was going upward comparing to last
year. The office and industrial property markets recorded stable
growth during the year, with price and rental edged up steadily.

On the other hand, weaker market sentiment and more
restrictions imposed on bank borrowings offered more
opportunities to non-bank money lenders as they provide more

flexible lending services to both retail and corporate clients.

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2017, operating result of the
broking business decreased by 40.3% as a result of the decrease
in revenue from securities trading activities and underwriting
transactions. Interest income from securities margin financing
also went down with the decrease in securities margin lending.
Revenue from broking business for the year decreased by 29.1%
to approximately HK$113.9 million (2016: HK$160.7 million)
as compared with last financial year, of which approximately
HK$43.5 million (2016: HK$45.0 million) was contributed by
the underwriting and placing business. The broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$55.1 million (2016:
HK$92.4 million) for the year. The decreases in broking
turnover and interest income from securities margin financing
were buoyed by the decrease in average market turnover during

thC year.
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TEREEREEES WA
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s major
revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total interest
income from securities margin financing decreased by 16.6% to
approximately HK$285.0 million (2016: HK$341.8 million).
Total outstanding of securities margin financing at 31 March
2017 amounted to approximately HK$2,923.3 million (2016:
HK$3,286.7 million), which was decreased by 11.1% as
compared with that on 31 March 2016. No impairment charge
was recorded in the year (2016: impairment charge of HK$3.1
million). The Group will continue to maintain a balance on yield
relative to risk and cautious approach to the credit control of its

margin financing business.

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, it completed 10 financial
advisory transactions (2016: 12). The operation reported a
segment profit of approximately HK$1.7 million for the year
(2016: HK$2.2 million). The Group was able to capture business
opportunities when the fund raising activities and transactions

relating to takeover were active during the year.

Money lending

The money lending vehicle is engaged in provision of consumer
and mortgage loans. The money lending business continued
to show steady growth during the year. The aggregated loan
amount increased to HK$636.6 million at 31 March 2017 from
HK$627.5 million at 31 March 2016, with interest income
increased by 37.2% to HK$92.5 million (2016: HK$67.4
million) for the year. It recorded profit of HK$90.4 million
(2016: HK$60.7 million) for the year ended 31 March 2017. No
material impairment loss was made on the loan book of money
lending for the year. Building on the Group’s expertise and
relationships with high net worth customers, the Group remains
positive about the money lending business and will continue to

target high net worth customers with short-term financial needs.

AND ANALYSIS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group. Assets allocations are based on
expected return rates and available funding capital. For the year
under review, this division reported a profit of HK$98.6 million
(2016: HK$78.1 million), mainly attributable to the fair value
gains on investment properties of HK$64.3 million (2016: fair
value losses of HK$6.2 million), the unrealised gains of financial
assets of HK$22.1 million (2016: HK$21.8 million), and the
realised loss on disposal of financial assets of HK$7.5 million
(2016: realized gain of HK$48.8 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group acquired
a 14-storey commercial property at Hung Hom, with a gross
floor area of approximately 47,000 square feet, at consideration
of HK$350 million. As at 31 March 2017, the Group held
a portfolio of investment properties with a total fair value of

HK$513.7 million (31 March 2016: HK$69.7 million).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group held a portfolio of equity and
debt securities and convertibles notes with a total fair value of
HK$800.2 million (31 March 2016: HK$190.7 million). The
increase in total fair value of the investment portfolio was mainly
attributable to subscription of a redeemable bond of HK$450

million and certain listed equity securities during the year.

Outlook

As the global economic outlook is clouded with uncertainties
amid recovery of global market, political environment in Europe,
the trade relationship between United States and Mainland
China after the change of presidency, the fluctuation of RMB
exchange rate and US interest rate, and the slowing Mainland
China economy, it would be challenging for Hong Kong, being
a highly externally oriented economy, in the coming future.
Nevertheless, the Group has successfully solidified the robustness
of its main revenue streams over the past years and time and

again proved its resilience in various economic cycles.
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TEREEREEES WA
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

As Mainland China rolled out its “One Belt One Road”
initiative and closer tied evolve between Mainland and Hong
Kong financial markets, Hong Kong’s solid financial system
and experience should provide the city with fresh opportunities.
Moreover, the launch of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
represents another milestone towards strengthening the
interconnectivity between the mutually complementary stock
markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland. We are expecting
Hong Kong to be the key channel for mainland capital to gain
value from overseas and more private companies from Mainland
are going public in Hong Kong. We are optimistic that market
sentiment and our businesses performance will improve in due

course.

The Group has utilised the proceeds from the listing of GNFG
to expand our securities margin financing and broking business
and further develop our underwriting and placing service.
Looking ahead, the Group is going to further enlarge the sales
and marketing team and corporate finance team, and further

improve our information and technology infrastructure.

In addition, the Group will keep secking quality and upscale
investment properties with good potential to enhance its
investment properties portfolio and continue to provide a source
of steady rental income in the future. Also, the Group will
continue to thoughtfully evaluate new investment opportunities
and manage existing investments in securities to support its

future performance.

Given our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients
base, strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the
Group is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in
the years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and

value for all shareholders.

AND ANALYSIS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

SPIN-OFF AND SEPARATE LISTING OF GET
NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

On 8 April 2016, the Group has successfully spun off its
financial services business through a separate listing of its
subsidiary, GNFG (stock code: 1469) on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The spin off involved (i) distribution in
specie of 167,755,348 shares of GNFG to the Qualifying GN
Shareholders (as defined in the Company’s circular dated 24
November 2015) in the proportion of one share of GNFG for
every 40 shares of the Company; and (ii) the Global Offering
(as defined in the GNFG’s prospectus dated 24 March 2016)
of 507,554,481 shares of GNFG at the offer price of HK$1.00,
raising a net proceeds of approximately HK$475.6 million.
Immediately following the completion of the GNFG spin-off,
the Group’s equity interest in GNFG was diluted from 100% to
72.99%.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$4,880.9 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$4,839.4 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$41.5 million, or 0.9% over that of the last financial year
end. The movement was mainly attributable to the profit for the
year, dividend payments, placing of new shares, deemed disposal
of partial interests in GNFG without losing control relating
to global offering of GNFG’s shares and distribution in specie
relating to spin off of GNFG. The effect arising from the spin
off and global offering of GNFG also mainly accounted for the
significant increase in non-controlling interest under total equity
from approximately HK$29.6 million at 31 March 2016 to
approximately HK$1,007.5 million at 31 March 2017.

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 March 2017 amounted
to HK$4,662.2 million (2016: HK$4,484.9 million) and
the liquidity of the Group, as demonstrated by the current
ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 5.92 times (2016:
4.82 times). The Group’s bank balances and cash on hand
amounted to HK$1,069.3 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$1,271.2 million). As at 31 March 2017, the Group had
no bank borrowings (2016: HK$435 million) and the Group
had undrawn banking facilities amounting to HK$935 million
(2016: HK$540 million) which were secured by charges over
clients’ pledged securities, a property as well as corporate

guarantees issued by GNFG.
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TEREEREEES WA
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

The number of issued shares of the Company was 8,052,255,938
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: 6,710,213,938). The increase is
resulted from placing of new shares under general mandate

during the year.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio (total liabilities
over equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 0.20
time (2016: 0.24 time).

The business activities of the Group are not exposed to material
fluctuations in exchange rates as the majority of the transactions
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and MOP and US$ which
are pegged to HKS.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the year end.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total loan commitments of
HK$80.1 million (2016: HK$12.2 million).

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2017, leasehold land and building of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$108.1 million (2016: HK$110.8
million) were pledged for a banking facility granted to the
Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

The Group did not make any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entity during the

year.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 81 (2016: 85) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was HK$21.3 million (2016: HK$20.0
million). The Group provides employee benefits including
mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options and

performance bonus to its staff.

AND ANALYSIS
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ITEREEREEES W ETH
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF BENROZFTEHRERE
NEW SHARES
The Company has received net proceeds of approximately Apale —F - NENANA T ILHSE
HK$298.9 million in connection with the placing of new shares i 2 B BT O3 di B B A5 ROIH 3 R4
completed on 29 August 2016. As of 31 March 2017, all net 298,900,000 7T - W E ~F —~ELF=H
proceeds have been used by the Group. Set forth below is a =+ —H o AL CE R 2T R IE R
summary of the utilization of the net proceeds: B oo N SCHESE P S kT R B
Amount of net Actual utilized Unutilized
proceeds intended amount as of amount as of
to be allocated 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
Intended use as disclosed ARABHE BE-ZS-tF HBE-F-tF
in the Company’s announcement “E2-X¥NAtEH BAOBZFE =B=1+-H =A=+-H
dated 15 August 2016 MifREzRRAR RERE CERERAZZE ZARBAEH
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
BEET BBAER BRER
(84) (#4) (#4)
General working capital —fEEE S 298.9 298.9 -
FINAL DIVIDEND REARE
The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK 1 cent per g # R IR R R Al - ]
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year, FERNE RN 2P EIRE > A B BUEE 2 )
amounting to total dividends of HK 2 cents per share for this BB 3L 55 Bl -

financial year.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 13 September R E MR —F—LHF LA + = H 8H
2017 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on B —E—-EFIJLA M H 25 AN ARk
the register of members of the Company on 4 September 2017. OB RO A 2 AR TR UK B o

12 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED & 1FZR &R AT



TEREEREEES WA
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered:
For attendance to 2017 21 August 2017 — 24 August

Annual General Meeting 2017, both dates inclusive

For entitlement to final
dividend

1 September 2017 —
4 September 2017
both dates inclusive
(Record date being
4 September 2017)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2017
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on 24
August 2017, Thursday and/or entitlement to the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the

following dates:

Last date of lodgment of transfer

Events documents

For attendance to 2017 18 August 2017, Friday

Annual General Meeting

For entitlement to final
dividend

31 August 2017, Thursday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017

AND ANALYSIS
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 62, is the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company and founder of the Group.
He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and
the future direction of the Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible
for overseeing the money lending and credit operation, property
development and investment of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses
over 22 years of experience in the securities and real estate
industries in Hong Kong and Taiwan. He is also the chairman of
GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
was spun off for separate listing on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 April 2016.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 71, is the deputy chairman
of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and future direction of the Group. Mr. Cham
is also responsible for overseeing the money lending business,
property development and investment the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 48 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

international banks.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS - continued

Executive Directors — continued

Mr. KAM Leung Ming, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 April 2017. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and a master’s degree in corporate governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
professional accounting and worked for several Hong Kong
listed companies of various industries and served senior roles
in financial management and secretarial functions. Mr. Kam
was the Company Secretary of the Company for the period
from 28 April 2011 to 7 April 2016. Prior to the appointment
as executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company, Mr. Kam was an executive
director and company secretary of GNFG (Stock Code: 1469)
for the period from 8 April 2016 (date of listing of GNFG’s
shares) to 28 April 2017. Mr. Kam was an independent
non-executive director of Casablanca Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2223) from 1 April 2016 to 26 May 2017. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Ever Harvest
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1549). All of the above
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Kam was appionted as the committee member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee
(Baoshan District) in December 2016.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3 October 2005. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Man has been involved
in the investment and financial industries for over 35 years and
has extensive experience in bullion, foreign exchange, securities,
futures and asset management business. He has held various
senior positions with prominent banks, international financial
institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Man
is currently a chief executive officer of Global Mastermind
Securities Limited which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Global
Mastermind Holdings Limited (stock code: 8063). He was also
an independent non-executive director of Global Mastermind
Capital Limited (stock code: 905) from 26 September 2014
to 18 April 2017 and Huanxi Media Group Limited (formerly
known as 21 Holdings Limited, stock code: 1003) for the period
from 10 April 2014 to 18 September 2015. All of the above
companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange in
Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS - continued
Independent Non-executive Directors — continued

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 January 2014.
Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Monash
University in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Sun possesses over 21 years of experience in
international finance, corporate finance, corporate planning,
financial management and accounting and held executive
positions at several international banks, accounting firms, the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and an information technology
company. Mr. Sun is currently an independent non-executive
director of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (stock code:
909), a company whose shares are listed on the main board of the

Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
September 2014. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for over 25 years. He is the managing director of
Fortune Take International Limited, a company engaging in
providing financial consultancy services. Mr. Siu was the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America and responsible for business
development and credit risk management. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Siu is currently an independent
non-executive director of BEP International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2326) and Sage International Group Limited (stock
code: 8082). All of the above companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2017.

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with the
view of being a transparent and responsible organization which
is open and accountable to the Company’s sharcholders. The
Directors believe that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investors’

confidence.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year under

review is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “Code”), save for the deviations which

are explained as follow:

Code A.4.1

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. The
Company has deviated from the Code provision A.4.1. The
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term. Instead they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years. This is
in accordance with the provision of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles”). As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of this

Code provision.

The Directors believe that, despite the absence of specified
term of independent non-executive Directors, the Directors
remain committed to representing the long-term interests of the

Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE - CONTINUED
Code A.2.1

Upon successful spin off and separate listing of Get Nice
Financial Group Limited (“GNFG”) in April 2016, Mr Hung
Sui Kwan resigned as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the
Company and Mr Hung Hon Man took up the role of CEO
of the Company on 7 April 2016. The roles of the chairman of
the Board and the CEO are performed by the same individual,
which is a non-compliance to the Code provision A.2.1 of the
Code. However, the Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operations of the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals and
meets regularly to discuss issues relating to the operations of the
Company. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Hung Hon
Man and believes that having Mr. Hung performing the roles
of the chairman of the Board and the CEO is beneficial to the

Company as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are delegated to the Chief
Executive Officer and the senior management. In addition,
the Board has also established three Board Committees and
has delegated various responsibilities to them as set out in
their terms of reference. The Board has the full support of the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities. Details of
the delegation by the Board will be discussed in the paragraphs

below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six Directors, more than
one-third of these Directors are non-executive and independent
of the management. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skill
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the

requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, three of them are executives,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, Chairman and CEO, Mr. Cham
Wai Ho, Anthony, Deputy Chairman, and Mr. Kam Leung
Ming, and three of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee), Mr. Man Kong Yui (Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)and
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee).

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors” of this annual report. As
at the date of this report, the Board members have no financial,

business, family or other relationships with each other.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and rtailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment. This is to ensure the new employee
possesses an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and has full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requircments.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

— CONTINUED

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous

professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge

and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2017,

relevant reading

materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts,

etc have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Hon Man

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony

Mr. Lung Hon Lui (note 1)

Ms. Tang Nga Yan, Grace (note 2)
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (note 3)
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (note 3)

Mr. Kam Leung Ming (note 4)

Independent non-Executive Directors
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry

Mr. Man Kong Yui

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick

Note 1: resigned on 1 March 2017
Note 2: resigned on 28 April 2017
Note 3: resigned on 7 April 2016
Note 4: appointed on 28 April 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings
adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors
have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board to
make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the
Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge

their duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS
During the year ended 31 March 2017, 24 Board meetings and

1 general meeting have been held. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communications.
Details of the attendance of the Directors in the meetings are as

follows:

EXERESEZEEER

PEE-E—LF=A=T—HIEFE
EHGRITUREFG GRS WBREKR
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Meeting attended/ Eligible to attend
BHREZEERYSEKHEEZ BN

Board

Ezg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hung Hon Man WA 23124
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony HEZE RS 23124
Mr. Lung Hon Lui (note 1) RS (i) 19/24
Ms. Tang Nga Yan, Grace (note 2) Rt (M) 22124
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (note 3) AEBEE (Hi3) 1/1
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (note 3) Wt (Hf3) 1/1
Mr. Kam Leung Ming (note 4) HoeBeE (4 NIARE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Man Kong Yui SCHRISE A 20124
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick HEH L 2024
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry Y e 20/24

Note 1: resigned on 1 March 2017
Note 2: resigned on 28 April 2017
Note 3: resigned on 7 April 2016
Note 4: appointed on 28 April 2017

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Director(s) or any of their associates have a

material interest.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon
Man and Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 April 2002 and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not

less than three months’ prior notice in writing to the other.

The executive Directors, Mr. Lung Hon Lui (appointed on 28
April 2011 and resigned on 1 March 2017), Ms. Tang Nga Yan,
Grace (appointed on 7 April 2016 and resigned on 28 April
2017) and Mr. Kam Leung Ming (appointed on 28 April 2017)
have not entered into any service contract with the Company
and there are no fixed or proposed length of service with the
Company. All Directors are subject to retirement by the rotation

at least once every three years.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and should then be

eligible for re-election at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick and
Mr. Kam Leung Ming will retire by rotation and, being eligible,

will offer themselves for re-election.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2017.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS - continued

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to 7 April 2016,
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan was the CEO of the Company who was
responsible for developing strategies for the Board’s approval,
executing the strategies agreed by the Board and leads the
management of the Group’s operation. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is a

nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man, the chairman of the Company.

Upon successful spin off and separate listing of GNFG in April
2016, Mr. Hung Sui Kwan resigned as CEO of the Company on
7 April 2016 and Mr. Hung Hon Man took up the role of CEO
of the Company on 7 April 2016. The roles of the chairman of
the Board and the CEO are performed by the same individual,
which is a non-compliance to the Code provision A.2.1. Details
have been discussed under the heading “Corporate Governance

Code Compliance” of this report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board at all-time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters

required.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the three independent non-executive Directors are
independent in character and judgement and they also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively

in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the CEO and senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Pursuant to the levels of authority
approved by the Board, the senior management executes
day-to-day operations unless the subject matter exceeds the
authority granted by the Board or relates to any matters
specifically reserved to the Board, they would seck approval from
the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee; (ii)
Remuneration Committee; and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable candidates for
directorship after consideration of the nominees’ independence
and quality in order to ensure the fairness and transparency of all
nominations; and (iii) to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. In identifying suitable director
candidates and making such recommendations to the Board,
the nomination committee would also take into account various
aspects of a candidate, including but not limited to, his/her
education background, professional experience, experience with
the relevant industry and past directorships. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam, Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry

(Chairman of Nomination Committee).
The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There

were three meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
(i)  recommended appointment of an executive Director;

(iii)  recommended the re-election of retiring Directors at the

Company’s annual general meeting; and
(iv)  reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

The Company adopted the board diversity policy on 28
August 2013 which aims to achieve diversity on Board in the
broadest sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the business nature
of the Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including gender, age,
length of service, professional qualification and experience.
The Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director and against the
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board that would complement the existing Board.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam, Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee). The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year. There were four meetings
held during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior

management of the Group;

(ii) recommended the basic salary increment of Directors and
staff of the Group; and

(iii) recommended remuneration package for a newly

appointed executive Director.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board and Board Committee

Meetings” of this report above.

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors and has authority to
raise questions regarding the resignation or dismissal of the
auditors; overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control and risk management systems and to
review the Group’s interim and annual consolidated financial
statements. The Audit Committee has access to and maintains
an independent communication with the external auditor and

management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee— continued

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
members are Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry, all of whom are not involved in the
day-to-day management of the Company. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang,
Henry, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The principal work performed by
the Audit Committee during the year included (i) review of
interim and annual consolidated financial statements; (ii)
review of management letter provided by the external auditor;
(iii) reviewing and discussion with the management about
effectiveness of internal control; (iv) reviewing and monitoring
continuous professional development of Directors; and (v)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and relevant
disclosures. The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year.
There were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2017. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee,
on named basis, at committee meetings during the year is set
out in the section “Board and Board Committee Meetings” of
this report above. There has been no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee regarding the selection and

appointment of the external auditor.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the sharcholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2017. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2017 on a going concern basis.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

ESERERESEET
ZEEE-H&

EREEE &
FEREZEGHEH =B FRITES
AR > o3 1 2 ol e S 2R~ ST e Ak K
Ryt WEHRAZHEALNFZH
W o SRR A B S R B 2EEAR
KERt B WEREAERLZAS
T o FHEZ RGN EBEENETZE
T A B4 (i) 9 B o 3 % 4F B2 1 A 5 R
2 5 (i) 7 B 1 A% BT i 3k 2 A AL R 5
(i) gt o 07 L6 2L R o iy P 4 B 28 ) B 5
(iR K ERERNFEEEER &
()b b A% 2% w2 ST <7 I %R B 9 2R RO A
W FEREEGHFRDBITWK G
MREE —F—LFE=A=T—HILFE
MERITMKE®E - FREETHREAR
FRNZEEGRZ BFROELPE > |/
RAHRE EXEFELEFRELZAGE
i —H o EHGUFL LB GEEME
A SN A B T T Sl 9 A B 40 0

MB®E

A B RO A B R B
S T R (15 39 B 2 0
* -

BEECER

HERMREERBETEEELA B2
A B AT IR U S E ST r A O B
FRE KGR ER 2 FAL - N E —F
—tE=ZHA=+—H IL4EE 2456 B R
ERE > EHROBSETEMRAGEZ G5t
BUSE DA S 1 1 B B A E ) o 2
FIAMBRA_E—LE=H=+—H7]
ENINIEIESS S ECE = SR N -4 O
4 Bl WLy T AT ] S RSB BH I & - (A
W EHOHFHESELERYEE - F
—tEEZH =+ — B IHEEAS T



CEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Directors’ responsibility — continued

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b)  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

(©) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;
and

(d)  ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.

In financial year ended 31 March 2017, the annual and
interim results were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on
pages 68 to 75.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,

the Company’s external auditor, provided the following services

to the Group:

ﬁ*ﬁd: llﬁ
@M*Z%Eﬂi@ﬂﬁ

BE_FT—-LHFE=A=+—H1LEEN-
AN T 2 AN WA B A o B R OT & R

AT 1] A 42 P 2 A3 DL AR

2017 2016

—E—+t5F TE R

HK$’000 HK$000

FHExT T

Audit services 2% RS 3,444 3,080
Taxation services T 7% R %5 25 24
Listing and other services T R H A R S 50 6,040
Total HEr 3,519 9,144

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board has set up
its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to
pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes
(i) identifying ownership of risks, business objectives and risks
that could affect the achievement of objectives; (ii) analyzing
the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio
accordingly; and (iii) considering the risk responses and ensure
effective communication to the Board/senior management and
ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register has
been maintained as a tool for documenting risks and actions to

manage each risk on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimize the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are

acceptable and how to address those that are not.

The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems has been

conducted and considers them effective and adequate.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of information
to the public through public announcements and the

Company’s website;

e the access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis such that employees
who are in possession of inside information are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs
and only designated persons are authorised to speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external

parties such as the media, analysts or investors.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year ended 31 March 2017, Ms. Tang Nga Yan,

Grace was the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Tang
resigned on 28 April 2017 and Mr. Kam Leung Ming was
appointed on 28 April 2017 as the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Kam is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company and is responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters. Both
Ms. Tang and Mr. Kam confirmed that they have complied
with all the required qualifications, experience and training

requirements of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on
the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. Sharcholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees attend and answer questions raised at the general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at

the general meetings on each substantially separate issue.
g g i

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharcholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company by mail at the Company’s principal office address
in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist (s) by the Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary
forwards communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the Board and communications relating to ordinary

business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries to the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcome to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at sharcholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How sharcholders can convene an extraordinary general

.
meeting” above.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS - continued

Constitutional Documents

Save for the amendment of articles relating to the dividend
distribution which was approved by the sharcholders at the
annual general meeting held on 24 August 2016, there had
been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents.
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The Board is committed to contributing to the sustainable
development of society and the environment, and is responsible
for evaluating and determining the Group’s risks relating to
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) areas, ensuring
that appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal

control systems are in place.

Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules “ESG Reporting Guide”, we
will discuss below the areas that are considered to be material and
relevant to the Group. Priorities are set based on management’s
view and certain concerns from our stakeholders. We engage
key stakeholders, including our customers, services providers,
shareholders, employees etc, in daily operations through
meetings and interviews to understand their specific views on the

relevance and materiality of various ESG aspects.

For this report, the Group has identified anti-corruption policies

and legal compliance on operation as material concerns to

stakeholders.

The information in this ESG report covers the operations of the
following major business units who operated only in Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2017:

Get Nice Financial Group Limited (“GNFG”)
Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNSL”)

Get Nice Futures Company Limited (“GNFCL”)
Get Nice Finance Company Limited (“GNFin”)
Get Nice Real Estate Limited (“GNREL”)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

B A AL SR W R A B R A
HER o I BB TR L E A 4R BB
5 kb KRR (TERYE - L& KR
W R A 1 B R AR R T A B B A AL
BB AL MR R A B B L o A A
B o

fE B R AR 8% — B TIR B - g KR
WA AR 51 ] P s B0 AN R BR B B AL kR
H o BRAM A AE T ST At A A B R B B
A 1 A R ) SR IS o MR R SR AR UK R R
T R S TR0 A B S
RE o FAMAE B W b R SRR
THE R E (BERMOES - R
FER ~ BOR - (B B5F) BRI ERYE - 4@ K
16 R R 0 R R R R BB -

TEA 5 v > A 4R 1B I 875 BUR KO8
PR E AR A N E RS
I o

AT~ A KRR S R R 25
TERFEESEN T EERRMEE —F
—tEHFE=ZA=Z+—HILFENEE

A AR B A PR D (T & st )
Rl R A RAF (&5 a2
M HMBEARAF (T5HFME]D
S5 UF A R A (&5 4 B s 1)
S EXRARAA ([HrEk])



RE -HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

The Group recognizes that success of our business depends on
the full contribution of all employees and accounts executives.
We provide a good work-life balance working environment to

our staff.

Here are some factors how to maintain the staff loyalty in our

workplace:

—  Friendly work environment that provides flexible
special arrangements for the needy employees, including
flexible work hours, examination leave, marriage leave,

compassionate leave.

—  Enhance our employee handbook to help employees have a
better understanding about the Group’s guidelines, policies,

rules and fringe benefits they are entitled to.

—  Equality of employment opportunity for all employees
in relation to all human resources matters including
recruitment, training, promotion, transfer and benefit etc.,
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, national
origin, disability or family status. All employees will be
treated as individuals solely according to their abilities to

meet job requirements.

—  Providing a healthy and hygienic working environment in
our offices (details are explained under the heading “Health
and Safety”).

In order to strengthen communication between the Group
and employees, human resources department regularly meet
employees to understand their difficulties and problems in daily

operation for review and monitor the working procedures closely.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES -

continued
Employment — continued

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and
age which provides platform for variety of ideas and levels of
competencies. The Board is also proud of the Group’s very
low staff turnover rate, reflecting a high level of employee
satisfaction and engagement with the Group. Most of employees
and accounts executives have been working in our Group for
more than 10 years. 87 of the full time employees together
with accounts executives who have been serving the Group for

more than 10 or 20 years were granted service awards as tributes

during our celebration dinner in year 2016.
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Breakdowns for full-time employees of the Group as of 31 March
2017 are listed below:

By Gender LR

No. of

Sex 4 5l Employee

BEAE

Male L) 45

Female B'g 36

Total et 81
By Age A

No. of

Age FiR Employee

BEAH

<30 <30 6

31-45 31 - 45 31

46-59 46-59 33

>60 >60 11

Total @t 81
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES -
continued
Health and Safety

In order to provide all employees with good and safe conditions

of working environment, we always review our working

procedure and ensure that those are in line with Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance.

A balanced diet is important for people, therefore we
provide a nutrient lunch to our employees at our office
premise every working day. It includes a wide variety
of cuisine such as meat, fishes, vegetables and soup,
emphasizing “less oil, salt and sugar”. Such free lunch
for employees at office has been offered by the Group for
more than 20 years and is one of our most welcome fringe

benefits.

—  We believe that “A healthy
body makes a healthy
mind and a happy person”.
Regularly we provided some
healthy refreshment to our
staff during office hours.

Installed two sets of water filtration systems in our office
in order to provide purer, healthier water for drinking
purpose; and brought some air cleaners and air purifiers to
improve the air quality in the office.

Displaying the Occupational Safety & Health Council’s
pamphlets in our intranet to educate and remind our
employees how to reduce the work injury.

Enhancing our medical benefits and coverage amount in
outpatient scheme to the employees, including general
practitioner, physiotherapist, Chinese herbalist and

bonesetter.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES -

continued

—  Supporting the Group’s female employees with prolonging
the duration of breastfeeding for the sake of their babies’
health. The Group allows flexible working schedule,
provides private and hygienic room to them to support
lactation during office hours.

— Arranging professional services providers to clean the
office’s carpet, telephone sets and computer equipment to
reduce possible germs spread.

The Group absolutely prohibits smoking and drinking liquor in
workplace during the office hour.

According to our record during the year ended 31 March 2017,
no sick leave record for work injury taken from our employees.

Development and Training

“SWOT” is a useful technique for understanding our strengths
and weaknesses and identifying both the opportunities open
to us and the threat that we will be faced. The Group always
look for a good fit between what the Group can do and become
and what constraints and opportunities which it operates in the

environment.

The Group encourages each employee to develop their strength
and opportunities through their own training objective. We also
welcome employees to attend some seminars or exhibitions which
are related to our business or operation during office hour so that

they can make themselves well-equipped for their career paths.

The Group had organized some internal and external training
programs which are qualified to Continuous Professional
Training (CPT) for employees and accounts executives
licensed under SFO with an aim that they would retain their
professional qualifications and update with recent industry
knowledge. Employees may be entitled to subsidies for trainings
or examination fees for application of licenses relevant to the

Group’s business.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

EBRERZIESR &

— AR SRr R B R AL AR T AY
[R5 ] o AR S R AR o AR 2R T
G I AR R > B ot g BRI
ity A2 B FA N 2 T 7E 4 IR ) IR 4R 7L

— RS BRI RO E 0
B - R BN - D T RE 0
A0 4 -

T2~ g ] PR 7E A 35 BT — AR AN il

REEZE T -ELFE=ZA=+—HILFE
MRC Bk o Sl HE R B ) T A5 BEC Bk o

BRRIEI

[SWOT | & 43 #r T B b B gl > A B3
11" % 4 A B 1 8 2 G B o 3R T A8
B o A M B — H SR TE FAE ) BT K
B K n] 2 L H AR > B KR BR BT B AR A
F14 BR 1) B A% 48 2 T B A R A5 T

A58 [ B B 4 R B ET AR B B E
B PEULI R E T > B OE - TR IR
LR 5T X ey ] L G L 2 ) S S
B B T & R B > SRR B A A
TEHE R E KRR -

A B [ EL O — S AT R A SR I (CPT) MY
7E 19 TR 7B B S0 EB £ N w1 #)  fE AR R K
1) B R B R M B I AR 2 B
MW ETEHEERNGAEBRE > &
12 55 BT RO AT SE R o R B AT DL F s B AR
A5 1 755 R T ) R R 0 T 8 45 35 ) %
B E -



RIE - HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES -
continued

As required by law in Hong Kong, each MPF scheme has to offer
a Default Investment Strategy (DIS) starting from 1 April 2017.
The Group invited our MPF service provider to organize a MPF
workshop to our employees in March 2017. The workshop is
not only introducing the details of DIS, but also explains their
fund categorize and fund performance by their fund manager.
Employee can easily make their suitable decision how to manage
their MPF account appropriately and reduce their investment

risk during their lifelong MPF investment journey.

Labor Standards

The Group strictly abides by regulations in Hong Kong and
other related laws in Hong Kong to prohibit any child and forced

labour employment.

Human Resources Department is responsible for monitoring the
operation and review of the procedures on how to comply with

the following relevant laws and regulations:

—  Employment Ordinance

—  Minimum Wage Ordinance

—  Sex Discrimination Ordinance

—  Disability Discrimination Ordinance

—  Family Status Discrimination Ordinance.

—  Race Discrimination Ordinance

—  Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
—  Occupational Safety & Health Ordinance

—  Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

—  Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

BRERSIESR-&

FREBLOHE > A -F—LFENH —
HE > &5 & vt #0045 g e fit—
1] P AR R W o A AR [ A 0 R 4 IR
BERER I —F — L = H B IR B 2L 3k A
& TAEYT > & A B H A 40 78 B3 R
W FE TG - 25 I 4 o0 O 4 A B A B
THESRE - EREWEE SR E IR
o R BRI AR A AR B e D% E
EHGE T WA SR MO s b o

B ITAA
A B R 5~ A s ) 081 L A A R 3 491
A F R R B R R A5 T

AN ERME R EEE
A BR i AR R

i LR NY LAR

— R

- EBAR T E A

— MR B

— BRI R

— RE f (L B AR

— i I A A 1)

— HREIE AR & R R
— R A Al R
—- EANER (FLEE) et
— i 1k B B A 191

Annual Report 2017 F3

43



44

B B RERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emissions

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing operations.
Emissions produced directly by the Group only related to eight
passenger vehicles for local travel and a yacht used by the senior

management for social function.

The Group’s principal operations are mostly carried out in
our head office in Hong Kong. We have our guideline to our
employees to minimize the need for face-to-face meetings and
keep business travelling to a minimum. Only a small percentage

of senior management travel overseas for business.

Use of Resources

The Group provides some clear guidelines to our employees how

to reduce/recycle the waste of resources.

The Group keeps closely monitoring the daily operation,
educates the employees how to reduce the resources in their daily

life effectively.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to implementing a green practice in our
workplace and educate the employees how to save our valuable

resources effectively by the following measures:
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION -

continued

D

Paper

Make double-sided copies/printing, reduce usage in

toilet paper, use plastic/glass cup instead of paper cup.

Collect all disposing paper in a green bag and assign
SSID recycling company for recycling.

“Newspaper bank” for collecting unwanted newspapers
in designated corner.

Internal correspondence and reports will be sent by
email for circulation instead of paper memo or notices.
Encourage to re-use papers which have been used
on one side only as draft documents or internal
documents.

Encourage our customers to receive their statements
in electronic form by granting incentive rebate to
them. As at 31 March 2017, approximately 40% of
the GNSL’s active customers were receiving electronic
statements.

Modified the format of account opening forms and
client agreements for GNSL and GNFCL to reduce
paper usage.

Proactively encourage the Company’s shareholders to
receive financial reports/circulars through the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company instead of
printed form. On average, the quantity of printed
copies for each distribution of financial reports/
circulars was approximately 400, which has been
substantially reduced when compared to few thousand
copies in previous years.

Place a tray in designated location to collect recyclable
papers and envelopes for further use.

Order A4/A3 paper with a PEFC certificate in support

and protect forest sustainable development. @

AEFC
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION -

continued

II)

III)

v)

Energy

—  Staff are reminded to turn off the lights and electrical
appliances if they are not in use.

—  Energy-efficient office equipment is always preferred in
making purchase decisions.

—  All lighting in conference room and reception area had
been replaced with energy-efficient LED light strips/
bulbs.

—  Keep the office equipment clean (such as refrigerators,
air-conditioning pipes and paper shredders) and ensure

that they run efficiently.

Water

Water consumption is not relevant to our business as it
relates only to the personal consumption of our employees
for their personal hygiene. But we keep reminding
employees/visitors to turn off water tap after use for water

conservation by posting notice in prominent places.

Food

Employees can enjoy a lunch meal in our office during the
working day. We encourage our employees to bring the

leftover food and rice to their home to reduce food wastage.

Ink/Toner cartridge recycling

Collected used printer ink cartridge and toner cartridge for

recycling by professional companies.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Due to the nature of principal business activities, we have no
major suppliers.

The Group’s suppliers include various computer system and
software vendors, providers of market information, legal
advisers and other business services professionals. The selection
of suppliers is based on criteria such as price, reputation,
track record of high corporate standards, expertise, capacity
creditability, business stability and product/service quality.

In order to minimize possible disruptions of supply chain, our
management from different departments maintained a close
dialogue with the suppliers. We also expect that our suppliers are
of high quality and operate in compliance with applicable local

environmental laws, ordinances and regulations.

Product Responsibility

GNFin provides loan products to individuals and corporates in
Hong Kong. including corporate structured loans, unsecured
loans and mortgaged loans. GNFG, through its wholly owned
subsidiaries GNSL and GNFCL, is a comprehensive financial
services provider specialising in a wide range services including
brokerage in securities and futures, margin finance, asset
management, and corporate finance advisory. GNREL is a
licensed broker for real estate in Hong Kong.

Hence, the Group’s business activities are required to comply
with the rules and regulations of various regulators in Hong
Kong such as Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, Hong Kong
Police Force (Licensing Office) and Estate Agents Authority. The
Group also strictly adheres to the applicable laws and regulations
relating to product/services responsibility in Hong Kong,
including:

. Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”);

o Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules;

o Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules;

o Securities and Futures (Client Securities) Rules;

e Conveyancing and Property Ordinance;

e Land Registration Ordinance;

*  Money Lenders Ordinance;

*  Money Lenders Regulations;

e Estate Agents Ordinance;

*  Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
(Financial Institutions) Ordinance;

*  Drug Trafficking (Recovery of Proceeds) Ordinance;

. Organised and Serious Crimes Ordinance; and

. United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures) Ordinance.
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OPERATING PRACTICES - continued

All operational departments are responsible for the
implementation of the control measures based on the established
policies and procedures. The senior management are responsible
for overseeing the day-to-day operations of these departments
and ensuring that the internal control procedures are, indeed,
being followed. We have published and circulated to our staff
written operational and procedural manuals, which contain
guidelines and implementation plans to ensure (i) conduct
business in an orderly and efficient manner; (ii) protect the
security of the assets of the Group and our clients; (iii) maintain
proper records and ensure reliability of financial information
and other information used within and published by the Group;
(iv) prevent and detect potential fraud; and (v) comply with all

applicable laws and regulatory requirements.

We also place great emphasis on providing quality services to our
clients. A complaint officer, who is directly responsible to the
compliance manager, is assigned to receive, record, handle and
report all complaints received from our clients. If any complaint
is received by our account executives either verbally or in writing,
they must be communicated to the complaints officer within 24
hours of receipt of such complaint. The compliance manager
will then review such complaint reports to ensure that they are
handled in a prompt and appropriate manner. A complaint
hotline is also set up and is handled by the complaint manager.
The hotline number is printed on the statement of accounts sent
to the clients of GNSL and GNFCL. We maintain a complaints
file to ensure full record and the action taken is maintained on

the appropriate portfolio’s file.

The Group places emphasis on protecting the privacy of its
clients in the collection, processing and use of their personal
data and is committed to the compliance of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance and other relevant codes of practice issued

by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data.

The Group owes a contractual obligation of confidentiality to
the clients in terms of their information as stated in the account
opening agreements, and therefore treats their transactions
record and personal information as private and confidential,
subject to disclosure requirements under the relevant laws, rules
and regulations (e.g. Listing Rules or SFO) that the Group is
required to comply with. Besides, the clients remain the rights to
review and revise their data, and also remain the right to opt out

from any direct marketing activities
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OPERATING PRACTICES - continued

Protection of Intellectual Property

The Group manages and protects its trademark “(;z” through

registration in Hong Kong. The Group obtains proper licenses

on software and information that are used in various operations.

Anti-corruption/Anti-money Laundering

The Group believes that honest, integrity and fairplay are

important company assets in business.

The Group strongly encourage employees to raise concerns and
questions regarding ethics, discrimination or harassment matters,
and to report suspected violations of these and other applicable
laws, regulations and policies. Early identification and resolution
of these issues is critical to maintain Group’s good relationships
with our clients, employees and stakeholders. We have zero
tolerance to corruption and bribery and show commitment in
combating corruption risks and loopholes. We have established
whistle-blowing policy to provide a mechanism allowing our
employees to report any malpractice existing in the Group to the

audit committee under the condition of confidentiality.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, we invited Independent
Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong (“ICAC”) to
our office to organize two seminars on “Anti-corruption and

Integrity” talks to our employees.

In order to detect and prevent money laundering and
counter-terrorist financing activities, we have established
numerous policies and procedures in compliance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements. Our staff are required to

comply with the relevant Hong Kong laws and regulations and

the anti-money laundering guidelines adopted by us.
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OPERATING PRACTICES - continued

Anti-corruption/Anti-money Laundering — continued

With reference to our anti-money laundering guidelines, our
policies and procedures consist of four main components,
being (a) client due diligence, including name search in database
system maintained and provided by a third party vendor,
in order to screen each new client against current terrorist
and sanction designations, and check whether the client is
a Politically Exposed Person (PEP); (b) ongoing monitoring,
including review on documents, data and information relating
to our clients and monitoring activities of the clients and
identify those transactions that are complex, large and unusual;
(c) suspicious transaction reporting, if any suspicious activity is
noted in the“ongoing monitoring” phase, we have to notify our
compliance manager. If there exists reasonable grounds to justify
that the clients or activity are indeed suspicious, we shall then
file suspicious activity reports to the Joint Financial Intelligence
Unit as soon as possible; and (d) record keeping, by recording
sufficient data and information to trace individual transactions
and establish a financial profile of any suspicious account or

client. These records are then kept for at least six years.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no legal case regarding
corrupt practices was brought against the Group or its
employees. Also, no whistleblowing concerning a criminal

offence or misconduct was reported.

COMMUNITY

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to supporting a variety of charitable
activities. On 11 February 2017, our staff members participated
in the Po Leung Kuk New Year Charity Walk for raising funds.

In October 2016, the Group supported Heep Yunn School’s
Work Experience Placement Programme for their students.
This was a good platform for the selected students to familiarise

with current work environment, work demand and to inculcate

importance of work ethics and attitudes.
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The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) money lending, (ii)
property development and holding and investment in financial
instruments; (iii) real estate brokerage and (iv) the provision
of financial services, including securities dealing and broking,
futures and options broking, securities margin financing
and corporate finance services. Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on pages 76 to 77.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to
approximately HK$80,523,000 in aggregate was paid during
the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.01 per share to the shareholders on the

register of members on 4 September 2017.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2017

is set out on pages 191 to 192 of this annual report.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 17 and 18, respectively, to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, 1,342,042,000 new shares were issued and
allotted as a result of completion the placing on 29 August 2016.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
80 to 82.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2017, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$2,892,453,000 (2016: HK$2,877,631,000) which
comprised the share premium, special reserve and retained

earnings.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Lung Hon Lui
— resigned on 1 March 2017
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie
— resigned on 7 April 2016
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan
— resigned on 7 April 2016
Ms. Tang Nga Yan, Grace
— appointed on 7 April 2016 and resigned on 28 April 2017

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick

Mr. Man Kong Yui

Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry

The following Director was appointed after the end of the
financial year:

Mr. Kam Leung Ming - appointed on 28 April 2017

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, Mr. Lung
Hon Lui and Ms. Tang Nga Yan, Grace have confirmed that
they have no disagreement with the Board and nothing relating
to the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association.
Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS - continued

Mr. Kam Leung Ming, who was appointed as executive Director
on 28 April 2017 will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with provision 112 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. Being eligible, he offers himself for

re-election.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange:

Name of Director  Details of changes

Mr. Hung Hon Man The monthly salary of Mr. Hung was

increased from HK$12,000 to HK$12,600
with effect from January 2017.

Mr. Cham Wai Ho The monthly salary of Mr. Cham was
increased from HK$26,000 to HK$27,300
with effect from January 2017.

Anthony

Mr. Kam Leung Mr Kam was appointed as an executive
Ming Director and company secretary of the

Company on 28 April 2017.

On 26 May 2017, Mr. Kam resigned as
an independent non-executive director of
Casablanca Group Limited (Stock Code:
2223).
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS - continued

Name of Director  Details of changes

Mr. Lung Hon Lui  Mr. Lung resigned as an executive Director
on 1 March 2017.

Ms. Tang Nga Yan  Ms. Tang resigned as an executive Director
Grace and company secretary of the Company on
28 April 2017.

Mr. Man Kong Yui The monthly director fee of Mr. Man was
increased from HK$7,000 to HK$7,500
with effect from January 2017.

Mr. Man resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Global
Mastermind Capital Limited (stock code:
905) on 18 April 2017.

Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, The monthly director fee of Mr. Sun was
Henry increased from HK$7,000 to HK$7,500
with effect from January 2017.

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, The monthly director fee of Mr. Siu was

Alick increased from HK$7,000 to HK$7,500
with effect from January 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to

16 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man and
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director
is for the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/ BERS ESEBRERXS

CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

1. The Group had entered into a tenancy agreement (as 1. ASEHE C BB A LTS B Wk (fF
the landlord) and consultancy agreement with connected ST MM R LT ARA
persons, which constituted continuing connected A TR o e e A B T 2 R A BR A 5

transactions of the Group under the Listing Rules:

(i) Tenancy agreement () HE®HS
Name of Term of Address
Transaction counterparty agreement of premises Amount
x5 REHUF2ER iR Y3 2 it &8
HK$
T
Tenancy made on 1 June Legend Creative 1 June 2015 to Workshop C9 and C10, 504,000
2015 (monthly rental: Enterprise Limited 31 May 2017 11/F, Block C,
HK$42,000) (Note) as the tenant S = Hong Kong
MEZFE—HFEANAH—H LEHEARAA ANH—H Industrial Centre,
Rl 2 (HAR (TR ALS) E-FbE Nos. 489-491
42,0009 7T) (K 7t) EA=+—H Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
FEILBEH 11148949158
HETEPOCHEIE
CIKC105 A
Note: The tenant is an associate of Mr. Hung Hon Man, an Btat B By AN Jl AT B 2 o i L
executive Director and Chairman of the Company. AR Z BB AL .
(if) Consultancy agreement (i) EERE =
Transaction Name of counterparty Tenune Amount
x5 REHFER £ o
HKS$
T
Consultancy Services Perfect Way One year from 300,000
i [ TR % Consultancy Limited March 2017
(‘PWCL”) HoF—tE=AERY—4F
Note: PWCL is a company beneficially owned by Mr. Lung Hon Bt aE : PWCLA HIBAT 3 S HE T A 4
Lui, a former executive Director. WA 2N e

26 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 4534 R A 7
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/

i

BAEXS &

¥

BREXS &

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

2. RERBEAEBZENME

2. Brokerage services and margin loan financing
Brokerage
commission Margin loan Maximum
income paid interest paid amount of
to the Group to the Group margin loan
Name of connected person HEALES for the year for the year for the year
ERE £re
FFEEHE FFEEE £
B4R ZREE RELER
AL ON ERANE ZEREHE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
T T T
Executive Directors: HTEE:

Hung Hon Man and his associates U } IR 1,637,968 52,834 2,673,041
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and his associates HEELRHE AL 19,042 - -
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate A RSN+ 2,231 - -
Hung Sui Kwan and his associates ST ] YN 18,325 - S
Lung Hon Lui S - 4,110 63,407

Directors of certain AEEETHEAR

subsidiaries of the Group: ZEE:

Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate SR N S A 579 9,843 (694,255
Cheng Wai Ho and his associate Ly I 13,585 - =
Kam Leung Ming and his assoicates HE R HEE N+ - 22 872

EHHE (EEBLERITESR RA LI
Gy ¥4 @ 1E # mE AR ARYE bR A
WAEEREFTH A T E (A
FIEE ZRBR AP B AR A 5% S AF BEACAR 4 KA
3,000,000%5 7T » (It > A5 B 22 5 MR 4% i
BRI ER 14A.76(1) (o) 1k 8 4 H0 8 ~F FR i ~ 4F
VAT~ O S ST R E 2 R E o

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, were of the opinion that the transactions listed
above were on normal commercial terms where all of the
applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio)
on an annual basis calculated under the Listing Rules were
less than 5% and the annual consideration was less than
HK$3,000,000. The transactions were thus exempted
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3. Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions

and confirmed that the transactions were:

(a) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of

business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to

or from independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions/
Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 56 to 58, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
At 31 March 2017, the interests of the Directors and their

associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code”), were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
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EEzROER &

— continued
1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of 1. XAFABREEIBEIZERRZ
the Company wr
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company
B 81T CESAI=E <)
EEnA BEME HEERYA BAZBETH
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 2,304,787,874 28.62%
BB WX EEHMEA ()
Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in FF o U S0 AR B B A B Honeylink

2,304,787,874 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Agents Limited® H Z & & #)
2,304,787,874 B ¥ 2 At 2 HE i o
Honeylink Agents Limited %4 Ji 9% Ji Ji
LRSS 2 AR AR H A
CEEAT RO R S A AR -

Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of 2. RAEARQRAZHMBAREFREERA
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a A(HEFEs))28REELIGEBTZ
subsidiary of the Company BT EREERZHE

Percentage

Number of of the issued

non-voting non-voting

deferred deferred share

Name of Director Capacity shares* held of GNS

L FES

FEERERE CRTERER

EENE ERME EEREE EZERZBISL

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
WSS ETE 2PN

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
AR e HmEA A

40,000,000 100%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

— continued

2%

Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a
subsidiary of the Company — continued

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of

BB 2 E R AR (i)

EEzROER &

2. RADAZHEBLARGEHFESERA
A(R#FES]) 28REELETZ
BREEEERZEFE-&

g BN R AE R R E R b RE i R
JREE, > I R 2 A 45 e W A AT IR R
K 5 SO K g st & B o
T B &I EE R e it IR T
A ON B R AL ] R A
N 2 & ST T DA S A 4 A i A
1,000,000,000,0005 7T 2 #X JA T % 48
JEREA N ST DAME R A B 2
B2 A RS 25 S5 T (T I R
MR R N > TSI R 5 2 B
Ry Y S NI | Az K4
25 A I R 2 O SR IR B A
B B 2 LA UR e

3. RADAFRZEMNBRAAGHEHME

GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company REEOIBTZEBRZHR
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of GNFG
EEEER
e &7 BEETRE
RS BERitE FERAE ZEDH
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 50,309,829 2.01%

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in

50,309,829 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
Honeylink Agents Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors

nor their associates had any interests or short positions in

any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company granted under the
share option scheme during the year are set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no options were granted to any director of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had

exercised any such rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, the register of substantial sharcholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that the following shareholders had an interest of 5% or
more in the issued share capital of the Company and this interest
represents long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

of the Company.

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name Capacity

=1 REME

Hung Hon Man
BB W LB (M)

Beneficial owner (Note)

HaHA N (i)

Honeylink Agents Limited
(“Honeylink”)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
2,304,787,874 ordinary shares of the Company which are
held by Honeylink, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon
Man.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share

capital of the Company at 31 March 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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st 81T ESACITSE <o)
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2,304,787,874 28.62%
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$45,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 17 to 37 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and is decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual duties,
responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing market

conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Sustainability and environmental conservation is an important
issue for our customers, shareholders, government and the
general public. Therefore the Group is committed to reducing
its carbon footprint and consumption of natural resources in all

possible aspects of business operations.

Our environmental strategy is centered on achieving a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services and the
minimisation of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental
degradation. Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications by
means of telephone, emails and video conferences or such other
communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Consequently we are able to minimize physical
travelling and printing. Moreover, the Group has introduced the
concept of paperless office in its working environment for years.
At present, except for legal documents such as contracts and
share certificates and documentary evidences for audit or legal
purpose, the Group avoids keeping hardcopy of all documents
and reports. All kinds of documents, original or duplicate, are
scanned and saved in an electronic system for future retrieval.
E-mails and electronic messages have replaced letters for most
formal and informal communications, both externally and
internally. Customers are engaged to use emails to receive their

daily and monthly statements in electronic forms.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Our Group operates in a highly regulated sector where the risk
of non-compliance with regulatory requirements could lead
to the loss of our operating licenses. Accordingly the effective
management of the relationship between us and our regulators
could significantly impact the success of the Group and its
long term value. Therefore, we make it a top priority to ensure
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations, and to stay

up to date on new laws.

During the year under review, the Group has complied, to
the best of our knowledge, with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules,
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules, Securities and
Futures (Client Securities) Rules, the Listing Rules, Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance, Money Lenders Ordinance, Money
Lenders Regulations, Conveyancing and Property Ordinance,

Land Registration Ordinance and Estate Agents Ordinance etc.

Compliance with these laws, regulations and similar
requirements may be onerous and expensive. Any such costs,
which may rise in the future as a result of changes in these laws
and regulations or in their interpretation could individually or
in the aggregate make the Group’s services less attractive to the
Group’s customers; delay the introduction of new services; or
cause the Group to change or limit its business practices. The
Group has implemented policies and procedures designed to
ensure compliance with the most relevant laws and regulations,
but there can be no assurance that the Group’s employees or
agents will not violate such laws and regulations or the Group’s

policies and procedures.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important
assets and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution
and support are valued at all times. The Group regularly
reviews compensation and benefit policies according to
industry benchmark, financial results as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits and mandatory
provident fund are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that
can bring the Group to new levels of success. Staff satisfaction
can be seen by our low staff turnover. Furthermore, the Group
places great emphasis on the training and development of
employees and regard excellent employees as a key factor in its

competiveness.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Our Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model with regards to the money lending
service, estate agency and securities brokerage business is to
maintain and build on our strong relationships within our
client base. Our mission is to provide the finest service to our
customers, the Group is constantly looking at ways to improve
customer relations through enhanced services. Through doing
the above we hope to increase the amount of business our

customers do with us and our reach for new potential clients.

The Group has no major suppliers due to the nature of
the principal activities of the Group. Instead, the Group is
expanding its business which may raise loans and other facilities
from bankers to finance its working capital and investments.
The Group has maintained good relationship with its bankers
who regularly review the financial information of the Group
and discuss with the Directors about the affairs of the Group.
The Directors expect that the major bankers would provide with
continued financial support to the Group in the foreseeable

future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry
and properties investment sector, the Group is facing significant
strategic risks on its capital expenditures and working capital
requirements when changing the strategic plans to adopt the

unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institution. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

— continued
Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise,
resulting from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has also
established its own business continuity plan to protect the Group

from risk of interruption to its business continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period

are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Hon Man
CHAIRMAN

29 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as "the Group") set out on pages 76 to
190, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matter

HRERER
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We identified the impairment losses on other loans and
advances as a key audit matter due to the judgment
required to assess whether objective evidence of
impairment exists and the estimation of the individual
impairment allowance, after taking into account the value
of underlying collateral, repayment records of borrowers,
the latest financial position and other information
available of the borrowers in default of settlement, and
the collective impairment allowance. The impairment
assessment process consists of both individual and

collective assessment.

As at 31 March 2017, loans and advances amounting to
HK$637 million, net of collective impairment allowance
of HK$6 million, represent 9% of the total assets of the
Group. The Group’s top five borrowers, amounting to
HK$495 million, represented 78% of the balance.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESTNAEERRENSE

Our procedures in relation to impairment of loans and

advances included:

—  evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
loans and advances and the measurement of the

impairment allowance.

— examining, on a sample basis, the loan credit
files and other evidence, including the repayment
records, obtained from management for any

objective evidence of impairment.

—  evaluating the collective impairment assessment
performed by management and checking
management’s calculation of the collective

impairment allowance.
A A S sl B R B BRI (B 2 R LA

— RRARAE R R BEAR T B AR kA e (R R
. RV R R IEE L Ll P Y O

- MhEREEE R E B R LA E R BT
(ORCRIER-S Fok; JEN-SLNNIEE YT/ &k

—  APAl R R E T R BE R AR
7 ol 4R B8 (Al 2 WA

Annual Report 2017 F3

69



70

VR E e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matter

HRERER

For further details, please refer to the disclosure of
estimation uncertainty in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements and credit risk and credit quality in
notes 6 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
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Key audit matter

HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ESTNAEERRENSE

Impairment losses on accounts recez'wzbleﬁ’am margin clients arz':z'ngfrom the business ofdmling in securities
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We identified the allowance for individual impairment
losses on accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance and
significant judgement in determining whether objective
evidence of impairment exists and the related estimation
uncertainty in the measurement of individual impairment

losses.

The accounts receivable from margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities amount to HK$2,906
million, net of allowance of impaired debts of HK$17
million. These represent 42% of the total assets of the

Group.
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Our procedures in relation to the allowance for
individual impairment losses on accounts receivable from
margin clients arising from the business of dealing in

securities included:

—  evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the

measurement of the impairment allowance;

—  checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with

reference to closing market price;

—  comparing the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral with the accounts receivable from each
individual margin clients to determine whether there

was any shortfall; and

— assessing the sufficiency of the impairment loss
recognised with respect to the above shortfall,
after taking into account other factors like credit
worthiness, past collection history and repayment

subsequent to reporting period.
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Key audit matter

HRERER

The accounts receivable from margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities which give rise to
the greatest estimation uncertainty are typically those
with exposures that are subject to potential cash flows or

collateral shortfalls.

For further details, please refer to the disclosure of
estimation uncertainty in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements and credit risk and credit quality in
notes 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information

included in the annual report, but does not include the

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not

cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance COIlCluSiOIl tthCOﬂ.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e Obrain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor's report is Chan Wo Mi.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
i TERT T
Revenue I %5 7 513,600 581,242
Other operating income HoAth &5 g A 9a 7,265 5,878
Other gains and losses HoAthli 75 12 548 9b 77,826 67,482
Amortisation and depreciation 6 T2 P8 17 (7,792) (7,311)
Commission expenses 14 B 32 (14,381) (23,535)
Staff costs J=EN N 10 (21,341) (19,954)
Finance costs Tl A 11 (5,900) (2,027)
Other expenses oAl BA 52 (60,700) (57,837)
Profit before taxation 75 Al i ) 12 488,577 543,938
Taxation T8 14 (73,291) (80,272)
Profit for the year AR B Vi ) 415,286 463,666
Other comprehensive income (expense) HABA T I #E (B 32)
Items that may be reclassified HEAJREE A E
subsequently to profit or loss 1872 2 JH H
Exchange difference arising on MR A 2 BE R
translation (3) (19)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale At EREZ
Investments N Fe IR 2 2,614 2,660
Deferred tax arising on HAGAT L E R
revaluation of B A 2 IR JE B IE
available-for-sale investments 31 (431) (439)
Items that will not be NEEH I HER 7
reclassified to profit or loss ZIHEH
Surplus on revaluation of YT AL B AR
properties 17 374 2,706
Deferred tax arising on WEENEEZ
revaluation of properties A% AT Fod TEL 31 (62) (419)
Other comprehensive income 7 A A 2 T 4R
for the year 2,492 4,489
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET THETT
Total comprehensive income A JBE 4 THI U 4 AR RE
for the year 417,778 468,155
Profit (loss) for the year AN N M A A 4R
attributable to: wAl (E18)
Owners of the Company AANFIEA N 341,945 463,714
Non-controlling interests IEHE R 25 73,341 (48)
415,286 463,666
Total comprehensive income (expense) LA N A = AL 2 [
attributable to: Weas (BASZ) A
Owners of the Company R/NSIE SN 344,353 468,203
Non-controlling interests FEHE 25 73,425 (48)
417,778 468,155
Earnings per share B A
— Basic (HK cents) — AR () 16 4.56 6.97

AnNuAl Report 2017 3R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R—ZE—tF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2017

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
(i FERT T
Non-current assets I B E A

Prepaid lease payments and TEAS A B R IE DL R
property and equipment VIE Y& 17 122,850 126,982
Investment properties BEY % 18 513,670 69,650
Intangible assets Y & & 19 8,963 8,955
Goodwill 7 20 15,441 15,441
Other assets HAth & 22 6,069 5,220
Deferred tax assets I SIE 5 VE B 31 1,281 1,281
Loans and advances B M K 23 5,607 62,041
Investments in securities EREE 25 559,881 101,539
1,233,762 391,109

Current assets it B B

Accounts receivable JEW R IR 24 3,000,547 3,317,491
Loans and advances B S B 23 630,971 565,435

Prepayments, deposits and other TSR ~ Hed K
receivables At JRE A R B 32 18,927 10,958
Tax recoverable G EER 343 886
Investments in securities B E 25 240,282 89,123
Bank balances — client accounts WATEER — B FIRS 26 649,170 402,409

Bank balances — general WATHE R — —RIRF

accounts and cash KB4 274 1,069,341 1,271,207
5,609,581 5,657,509
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE—tEF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2017

2017 2016
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 FHERT THson
Current liabilities i =K
Accounts payable JREAT B TE 28 722,780 493,927
Accrued charges and other payables TE =2 ) S HoAh EASHHE TH 34 10,170 7,467
Amounts due to non-controlling IR I8 T B R K TR
shareholders 29 52,684 52,684
Tax payable JRE A B 1A 161,707 183,531
Bank borrowings AT & 30 - 435,000
947,341 1,172,609
Net current assets it Bl VR AR 4,662,240 4,484,900
Total assets less current liabilities AL W B B & 5,896,002 4,876,009
Non-current liabilities IE i) B A
Deferred tax liabilities AR GEFLIA A 31 7,627 7,008
Net assets R 5,888,375 4,869,001
Capital and reserves G K A
Share capital N 33 805,225 671,021
Reserves A 4,075,647 4,168,338
Equity attributable to owners of the AN F A N EAG B R
Company 4,880,872 4,839,359
Non-controlling interests IE P2 IS BE 75 1,007,503 29,642
Total equity HIRE RS 5,888,375 4,869,001

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 190 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Hon Man
AR
DIRECTOR
HF

BICHRFIE Z MBI EmES &
W E— BN L R R T
5o M FAIE RN R E

Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
BB
DIRECTOR
HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATREARL

Property  Investments Non-
Share Share  Special revaluation revaluation Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve feserve feserve reserve  profits Total interests Total
it nx R& E37
Re  BERE HHBE EfEE  EMBE  EARE REE i Es g
NOTES ~ HK$000 HK$000 HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
i Tibr  Fbr  Tr T T Tt T TEr T TEx
(Note)
(W3
Balances at 1 April 2015 RoE-14
WA-AZ&H 738 2039 13 118 (3579) 406 1031022 3899938 (63,978 3835560
Profit for the year KEEER = = = = = - 43714 463,714 (48) 463,666
Other comprehensive income AR Hf
for the year AENE
Exchange difference BHERZ
atising on translation Eizd = = = = = (19) = (19) = (19)
Surplus on revaluation NEELRE
of propertics = = = 2,706 = = = 2,706 = 2,706
Deferred tax arising on WEEELL
revaluation of properties EERA = = = (419) = = = (419) 5 (419)
Fair value gain on ikt EgEs
available-for-sale investments MEkE - - - - 2,660 - - 2,660 = 2,660
Deferred tax arising on EffftLE
revaluation of REREZ
available-for-sale investments EERR = - - - (439) - - (439) - (439)
- - - 21287 2201 (19) - 4489 - 4489
Total comprehensive AEEZER
income for the year ligrit - = - 2087 201 (19 46374 468,203 (48) 468,155
Decmed contribution from R R R A
non-controlling shareholders = = = < = - - - 72,004 72,004
Non-controlling interests arising ~ — HIBARRMER:ER
on incorporation of LA 2
a subsidiary during the year L = - - = = = = = 1,00 1,00
Deemed loss arising from waiver Sol-ME2EHE
of inter-company balance due NN [iFstidis
from a non-wholly EEZREER
owned subsidiary = = = = = - (20464 (20464) 204064 -
Shares ssued under rights issue RAEURE B2 el 33 13673 400,613 - - - - - 626,286 - 626,286
Dividends recognised as distibution  FEGRIE/ME 2 B EL 15 = = = = = - (134204 (134204) - (134209
Balances at 31 March 2016 REZ-RE
SHEF-HZER 671,021 2,691,752 123337 14,148 (1,354) 387 1,340,068 4,839,359 29,642 4,869,001
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATRREARL

Property  Investments Non-
Share Share  Special revaluation  revaluation Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve feserve feserve reserve  profits Total interests Total
kit nx k& FER
A BER BHRE ERRE EREE  ENRRE  REEA 2] E& 2]
NOTES ~ HK$000 HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HK$000 HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000
i3 Ter  Tr  TEx TR T T T T T TEx
(Note)
(Hf3h)
Profit for the year R - - - - - - ML 39 T3ML 415,086
Other comprehensive REEZ i
income for the year AlE
Exchange difference WEREL
atising on translation EiER = = = = = () = () - ()
Surplus on revaluation WEERRS
of propertics - - - 73 - - - 73 101 374
Deferred tax arising on WEEREEL
revaluation of properties RIEHE = = S (49) - - - ) (17) (62)
Fair value gain on it ERE L
available-for-sale investments UL e - = = = 2,614 = . 2,614 = 2,614
Deferred tax arising on revaluation & i i &
of available-for-sale investments ~ HEEEZ
RAERE = = = = (431) - - 1Y) 5 1))
: . : w8 0) -8 TR Y)
Total comprehensive income KEEZ AT
for the year hidH - - s 8 218 B M5 M3 B 47T
Distribution n specie Eibk il - (163981 35810 = = = - (871 18171 =
Deemed loss arising from B2 EHEAT
aapitalisation of ZERNARNSS
inter-company balance e Wi e lis
due from a non-wholly Ef
owned subsidiary 4] . - = - = - (108159)  (108,159) 108,159 -
Deemed disposal of parial Rk E—HRBAR
interest in a subsidiary DT R L
without losing control bugil | = = = = = - (07413 (7423) 714977 507,554
Issue of shares under placing BREERTRE 3 134204 16775 - - - - - 300959 - 300959
Dividends recognised MR R
as distribution 15 - - - - - - (161,046)  (161,046) - (161,046)
Contribution from FERER g
non-controlling interests 4] = = = g = - - I 400 400
Dividend paid to ERFEERERZ RS
non-controlling interests = = E = = - - - @wm)
Balances at 31 March 2017 RoE—tF
ZHZT-HZER 805,05 2,695,326 159,147 14376 829 384 1205385  4880.872 1,007,503 5,888,375
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Note:

The special reserve of the Group arose as a result of the group
reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) completed on 16 May 2002, which
principally involved the exchange of shares of the Company with all the
issued share capital of Get Nice Incorporated. The details are set out in

the prospectus dated 24 May 2002 issued by the Company.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book value of a
subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to
the listing of the Company’s shares, as well as the difference between
the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the acquired subsidiaries and
the nominal value of the Get Nice Incorporated’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Reorganisation prior to the listing of the

Company’s shares.

As set out in the prospectus of Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(“GNFG?”), a subsidiary of the Group, dated 24 March 2016
(“Prospectus”), sharecholders of the Company would be entitled to one
share of GNFG for every 40 shares of the Company held on the Record
Date (as defined in the Prospectus).

An amount of approximately HK$35,810,000 represents the difference
between the proportionate share of the interest in GNFG and the net
assets value on Record Date in relation to the distribution in specie
arising from the listing of the shares of GNFG on 8 April 2016.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

Wi 5

AR Z R ARG I B R FE AT N
Az EmEA ((EH)) s - BEHFE
W R AR 28 7] JBeAR 38 Get Nice Incorporated 2 4%
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AR P B ERE o

e 1t A A 2R BT R 2 ) M T R — SRR e £
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B N W) AE AR A R AR b T A AT AH IRE 2 I
WETT 34T 2 R T (A 2 T A 2288 > LG o Wi B
J& AT 2 SR R E 4 > BlGet Nice Incorporated
TE A7) [ 4y b T R A AT T A IRE 2 o T T R AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_ZT—tF=A=1+—"HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
“E-tF | “FNF
NOTES HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
Bt &1 THET THs T
Operating activities B8R
Profit before taxation ¥ 4 i i A 488,577 543,938
Adjustments for: KR
Amortisation and depreciation 3 DS E 17 7,792 7,311
Gain on disposal of th B W 2 SRR
property and equipment Z W s 9(b) 5) (207)
Net recognition of DL IE B 2 B (E i 1R
impairment loss on Tl "R T A
— loans and advances — B I B 23 1,612 4,207
— loans to securities margin — IR
clients BF K 24 - 3,129
Fair value changes on TEY N E
investment properties 5% 8 18 (64,270) 6,150
Finance costs il A 11 5,900 2,027
Interest income FLE A (400,326) (421,642)
Loss upon a disposal Hh A — H] B 8 & 7
of a subsidiary b Eist 43 - 1,476
Gain from a bargain purchase e {5 L — [ A B
of a subsidiary NI & 42 = (12,753)
Fair value changes on financial Fe O\ FuAE A 18 2 HERR 2
assets at fair value through <& B Y
profit or loss NII=R L] (22,136) (21,750)
Operating cash flows before EEESEBH 2
movements in working capital KT 4 8 17,144 111,886
Changes in other assets HoAth ¥ i 2 5 ) (849) (673)
Changes in accounts receivable JE U B TH 2 5 ) 316,944 (277,799)
Changes in loans and advances Bk K BhGR 2 s (10,714) 2,619
Changes in prepayments, deposits FEATIIE ~ Hed K
and other receivables T At JRE A 3RIE 2 5 ) 1,603 24,261
Changes in financial assets Tﬂ“ﬁEE B e
held for trading 2 5 (120,484) 12,683
Changes in bank balances WITH B —FFIRF
— client accounts 2 55 (246,761) (197,021)
Changes in accounts payable WA} IR T 2 5 5 228,853 215,556
Changes in accrued charges JE =t 2 ) R HAth R Af
and other payables HRIH 2 5 1) 2,703 (110)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_Z—tF=A=+—"BLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
—E—LF | CEOAE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M &E FHERT THs T
Cash from (used in) operations &S TR (BT ) B4 188,439 (108,598)
Interest income received R Bl A 390,754 418,087
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B AT & s 15 B (94,446) (63,435)
Net cash from operating activities 1 2B A
B & 484,747 246,054
Investing activities g EH
Purchase of available-for-sale I AT I
financial assets 4 A E (38,431) (26,997)
Purchase of financial assets Wil B4 2 B A% A ol
designated at fair value IR HERR 2
through profit or loss &R E (492,700) -
Proceeds from disposal and H % % 18] 38 5 B
redemption of financial assets 7S/ DA = E
designated at fair value ﬁﬁ PR e G E
through profit or loss 2 5 3 I 25,800 22,092
Proceeds from disposal of H B At A i
available-for-sale financial assets 2 45 #K I8 41,064 7,340
Purchase of property and Wi E ) € K nﬁ%
equipment 17 (3,286) (3,970)
Purchase of intangible assets I B T & 19 (8) =
Purchase of an investment property [ B 4% & ) 2& 18 (379,750) B
Acquisition of a subsidiary WA i — [ B g 2 = 42 = (24,560)
Net cash inflow of disposal of HE — [ E A A 2
a subsidiary B A A 43 > 7,507
Proceeds from disposal of B W) 3 KRR
property and equipment JiIT 15 3K IH 5 340
Net cash used in investing activities % & £ Jir i 2
B & (847,306) (18,248)
Financing activities Tl 2
Refund for unsuccessful A PR R B T
applications of rights issued i 2 B - (165,649)
Capital contribution from WG L E
non-controlling interests 41 507,954 1,200
Interest paid 2 FE (5,900) (2,027)
Dividends paid AT IS 15 (161,046) (134,204)
Dividends paid to B A 2 R 2 2 S
non-controlling interests 11 (47,271) -
Proceeds from bank borrowings thﬁ)ﬁ% FIE 1,330,000 2,056,095
Repayment of bank borrowings 1 ﬁfEUT &4 (1,765,000) (1,949,585)
Proceeds from issue of shares %’gﬁ? ﬂx fﬁ:}ﬁ)fﬁ% ,t}/( 33 301,959 —
Net cash from (used in) financing &S TR 2
activities i 160,696 (194,170)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2017 2016
—B—tF | —“F-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THTT
Net (decrease) increase in cash and He kBl eSS EEE
cash equivalents & () H#m (201,863) 33,636
Effect of foreign exchange AN T SR 55 Tl 2 5 2
rate changes (3) (19)
Cash and cash equivalents at TR 4 e B4 S
beginning of the year THH 1,271,207 1,237,590
Cash and cash equivalents at R 4 K B4 S
end of the year HH 1,069,341 1,271,207
Represented by: -
Bank balances — general accounts RATEE B — — BIRF 1,069,284 1,271,167
Cash 4 57 40
1,069,341 1,271,207

Annual Report 2017 F3

87



86

r B B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEC

—tF=A=+—HALFE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Its substantial shareholder is Honeylink
Agents Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability of which the entire
share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man,

who is also a director of the Company.

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 41.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions
of interest in joint
operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation

and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities:
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Applying the

consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

P

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

ERHITEEMBREEAR
ERMBHREER 2]

REAFERFERZEBYHEEE
Rz 85T

A A T P A AE B T UOE R DAE o A s
Bl B2 AR A 2 A S R e
ZAERT
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MR 1198 2 5t
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B s G e PR 5T E
E19E 2 ERT

s g st el A2 2 T
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s st Al R A ENEY
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F4198 2 BT

s B 5 REER - A
HERI 1098 - LB AMRZ 51
F vt B S s 1% W

HE HI 551298 )
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r B B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

ERHITEEMBREEAR
BERUBBRELEN 2B -&

£ 28 5 1B 14 K 4 Rz HT R] & 8 M A 3
effective EEAREBYBREER 2]

A £ [ NI A A LRE N 41 2 A A 1L i
R A B2 B R A T i R e A
S5 o YR R 2 BT

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’ s I 4 i T EL
HE I 25998
HKERS 15 Revenue from contracts with T e B 5 3 45 BFE& X K
customers and the related HE B 251555 AH B EET
amendments!
HKFRS 16 Leases” s I fHE?
HE HI5E 1698
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and s PR XA 2 28 5
measurement of W SE 2% 2 ) B e w B
share-based payment BEET
transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 7 Uk B 37 BB R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKEFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the

Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

* in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments — continued

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2017, application of
HKEFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. The Group’s available-for-sale investments of
carrying amount of HK$101,620,000, which are currently
stated at fair value, will either be measured as fair value
through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject
to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition, the
expected credit loss model may result in early provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to
the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs
a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

* Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

* Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

 Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers —

continued

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing

application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may not have a
material impact on the amounts reported. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may result in more disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.

Except for the above, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the new and amendments
to HKFRSs listed above will have a material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair

value, such as value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:
e has power over the investee;

D is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases

to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Business combinations — continued

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

D deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”

respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into
to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are

measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Business combinations — continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,

when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised

as of that date.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit

or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

Business combinations achieved in stages are accounted
for as separate steps. Goodwill is determined at each step.
Any additional acquisition will not affect the previously

recognised goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less any accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit

from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

services provided in the normal course of business.

(a) Revenue arising from financial services is recognised on

the following basis:

o Commission income for broking business is

recorded as income on a trade date basis;

. Underwriting commission income,
sub-underwriting commission income, placing
commission and sub-placing commission are
recognised as income in accordance with the
terms of the underwriting agreement or deal
mandate when the relevant significant acts have

been completed;

o Advisory, proof of funds commission,
management fee and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant

services have been rendered; and

* Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

(b) Rental income under operating leases is recognised in
the profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Buildings are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair
value less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the property revaluation reserve, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of
the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in the
carrying amount arising on revaluation of such buildings is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, on the property revaluation reserve relating
to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable

revaluation surplus is transferred directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment — continued

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
valuation of property and equipment less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on

a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

3.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered).

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment of non-financial assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are

recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Intangible assets — continued

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an

indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash

flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease under that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Intangible assets — continued

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill —

continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under

that standard.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

asset and settle the liability simultancously.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

*  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVITPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising from remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the other gains and losses.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as AFS financial assets or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) financial assets at FVTPL or (c)
held-to-maturity investments. The Group designated certain
debt securities as AFS financial assets on initial recognition

of those items.

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit
or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting

policy in respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables including accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposits, other receivables and bank balances are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy

on impairment of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

Accounts receivable and loans and advances are assessed
on a collective basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the

financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

3.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

TEEHBRR-&

SWMIE-&

TEEERE

B RE E (ONEFEHEA A i 48 45 SR
ZARRE ) AR I R s B S
TTaFAl o A FE B EUR L HE K
ResmMmEEREEY —HLZHSE
BRI G MEE AR KRB SR E
Z R SRUEE T A EAE e

BE 2 F B RS P T LA

o BT ANEIZR B ¥ 5 B K L
ESE =Y

o EREH B KBRS A
BEAR MR 5

o B AR AT fE L E BUEAT IS E
4 5 8k

o [RIIAECIA HE A B B A E 2
G A PN

R {58 8 5 R T LA e 8 R e R A R |
wF Al IRF 28 T 20 R A B(E > IR iR SR
W AT I AE A o EMGR I AL &
HBUE < ZBLRE 58 ] 46 A AR B 2
FRAEER > LA K B M R O A K
P 2 1B 52 B 77 AE IR D0 i B T B 4%
2 -

MRS RASI R EMEEN S
o e R U (L s 1R R R % R R
T (i B DL <6l 7 2 DAL PR R e
BB A A R A B U B ] 2 2
e

Annual Report 2017 F3

109



110

r B B T 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When AFS financial assets are considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are classified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest rate method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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BEC
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased

asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
lease in which the entire lease is classified as operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Leasehold land and building — continued

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease

is classified as an operating lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currencies — continued

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short term time deposits with an original

maturity of three months or less.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the management has made various estimates based on
past experience, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements within the next financial

year are disclosed below.

Impairment losses on loans and advances and accounts
receivable from margin clients arising from the business

of dealing in securities

The Group periodically reviews its loans and advances
and accounts receivable to assess whether impairment
losses exist. In determining whether impairment losses
should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the Group has
individually evaluated its loans and advances and accounts
receivable for impairment after taking into account the
value of the underlying collateral, repayment records
of borrowers, the latest financial position and other
information available of those borrowers in default of
settlement to determine the net present value of expected
future cash inflow. If the financial conditions of the
clients of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make repayments, additional
impairment losses may be required. As at 31 March 2017,
the carrying amount of loans and advances and accounts
receivable are HK$636,578,000 (2016: HK$627,476,000)
and HK$2,905,970,000 (2016: HK$3,269,325,000),
net of allowance for impaired debts of HK$6,050,000
(2016: HK$4,438,000) and HK$17,329,000 (2016:
HK$17,329,000), respectively.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong was determined by an independent firm of
professional valuers and by the directors of the Company.
The valuation performed was arrived at with reference
to recent market prices for similar properties at similar
locations with total fair value of HK$513,670,000 (2016:
HK$69,950,000) as at 31 March 2017. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to recent market prices would result
in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount of

gain or loss reported in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Tax provision and tax losses

In 2014, the hotel complex and certain assets related to
the hotel and entertainment operations (the “Assets”)
were disposed of, resulting in a gain on the disposal,
and realisation of fair value gains previously recognised
in respect of investment properties. The management
has made a tax provision in respect of these gains with
the assumptions that (i) the tax losses of Grand Waldo
Entertainment Limited (“Grand Waldo”) brought forward
from previous years, which have been tentatively agreed by
the local tax authority, can be utilised against the profit
arising from the disposal of the Assets, (ii) the allocation
basis of the proceeds from disposal of the Assets between
Great China Company Limited, which is the subsidiary
which owned the properties comprising the Assets, and
Grand Waldo is appropriate and will be eventually accepted
by the local tax authority as it is in accordance with the
sale and purchase agreement, and (iii) the cost base of the
Assets have been approximately determined for the purpose
of calculating the gain on disposal for tax purposes. In case
where the local tax authority raises further comments on
the tax losses brought forward of Grand Waldo, or does
not agree with either the calculation of the cost base of
the Assets or allocation basis of the proceeds from disposal
of the properties, recognition of significant amounts of
additional tax in the profit or loss account may be required

in the future.

As at 31 March 2017, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
HK$93,288,000 (2016: HK$177,629,000) due to the
majority of the balances are subject to further approval
by the local tax authority. In addition, the realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are more than expected, a material
recognition of deferred tax asset may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the year in which such a

recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt where applicable,
which includes the amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and bank borrowings as disclosed in notes 29
and 30, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note 33
and reserves as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the
year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SF(FR)R throughout both years.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets 4 Pl
Fair value through profit or loss

— held for trading
— designated at FVTPL

—FEER

Loans and receivables BRI R G IE
(including cash and (B4 Bl K&
cash equivalents) Be5EER)

Available-for-sale investments At ERE

& AR

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

s FUAE R 2 T
— 18 E BN RER AR

EXxERER

A B2 A PR > DL R A SE F A
Z FLHLI e R A AR > B AL
fRUBE M HE 2 &5 B J JBC SR A 2R B K (]
o AL 2 BEA MG EY (W
) (R B RE29 J23073 1l B 8% 2 X
I 422 B e o I 2 SR AT 1R ) DL RO
O RN AL RE i M RE33 M R
ZEBATIA > DL R AR A R 4 A ) R
Wik 2 Tl o 8 P % R E A R
FIE A Z M B R By > A T A e A
ZERE o A B R I AS SR T 05 08 UK A
P S~ BEAT BT AL LA B 8% AT 5 5
[|] B3 A 55 170 - 47 4 0 R R o 4
A > A B2 T 2 SR W A A N A o

EMETHRZAFES R MRS
BEREZEG ((HBEF) IHE B
BAEEER LR (M BCE ) BRI
ZUM Y BRI ALE o AW ZHE
R Y b 2 R B P BOE IR B
AR B B R AR B AS K8 B B
RE o A HILE 4 H D) A e S T A
2B E B KT TR ST R I &Y
B (M BCE ) AT B (R B &
BLRE o A 45 [ 32 A5 5 B S A 4R 1R —
HETE S E (MEER) SAZ

ETEMTH

EESRMIA
2017 2016
—¥—tE | T A
HK$°000 HK$’000
FH T
206,814 79,047
491,729 10,076
5,373,263 5,626,230
101,620 101,539
780,163 984,155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in securities, accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposits and other receivables, bank balances,
accounts payable, other payables, bank borrowings and
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to accounts receivable, variable rate loans and
advances, bank balances and variable rate bank borrowings.
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to debt securities held by the Group. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Group closely manages its exposure
arising from margin financing and other lending activities
undertaken by allowing an appropriate margin on the

interest received and paid by the Group.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate
and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising

from the Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

A 50 basis points increase or decrease on accounts receivable
and bank borrowings is used while 5 basis points increase or
decrease on bank balances is used when reporting interest
rate internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change

in interest rates.
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk — continued
Cash flow interest rate risk — continued

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of each reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate had
been 50 basis points higher/lower on accounts receivable
and bank borrowings and 5 basis points higher/lower on
bank balances, the Group’s profit after taxation would
increase/decrease by HK$12,720,000 (2016: increase/
decrease by HK$11,835,000).

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of market interest rate

arising from the Group’s debt securities.
g p

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as the directors of
the Company consider the debt securities are not subject to

significant fair value interest rate risk.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities. The directors of the
Company manage the exposure by closely monitoring the
portfolio of these financial instruments. The fair value of
these financial instruments will be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes in the closing

market prices of the relevant listed equity securities.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 20% (2016: 20%) higher/lower, and held other
variables constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for
the year would increase/decrease by HK$34,538,000/
HK$34,538,000 (2016: profit after taxation for the
year would increase/decrease by HK$13,201,000/
HK$13,201,000), as a result of changes in the fair value of

listed equity securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of
the respective entities and, in the case of Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and United States dollars (“US$”), the exposures
are limited as MOP and US$ are pegged to HKS$,
respectively. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been

presented on the currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and loan
facilities provided by the Group is arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to loan

facilities provided by the Group as disclosed in note 37.

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when due. Impairment allowances are made for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.
Significant changes in the economy or environment of
a particular industry segment could result in losses that
are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages

its exposure to credit risk.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes
in relation of accounts receivable, loans and advances,
other receivables and debt securities by placing limits on
the amount of risk accepted in relation to any borrower or
issuer, or groups of borrowers. Such risks are monitored on
a revolving basis and subject to a quarterly or more frequent

review.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

The management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Each client has a maximum
credit limit based on the quality of collateral held and the
financial background of the client. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
Margin calls are made when the trades of margin clients
exceed their respective limits. Any such excess is required to
be made good within the next trading day. Failure to meet
margin calls may result in the liquidation of the client’s
positions. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over

its outstanding receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited as the
counterparties are banks with high credit rating assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The exposure of credit risk on debt securities is limited as
they are issued or guaranteed by companies listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group’s maximum exposures to credit risk relating
to loan commitments unrecorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position is HK$80,100,000 (2016:
HK$12,150,000, as set out in note 37(b)).

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or a broker and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding from
the market in the capacity of a financial institution, and the
ability to close out market positions. As part of the measures
to safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.
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BE_ZT—tF=A=1+—"HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERREEEEREEX &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued REEZEE—
Liquidity and interest risk tables it B B R F 5 B Y %
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining T %%??}lii A< AR [ 4 A AR 98 b R
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the R 2 FI R & KR o T RBES
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up ﬁﬂlﬁ FRAR WG BB B U i (F5 A 42 1 ] i
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities s RER B mmE - TER
according to the earliest date on which the Group can R ERAGHSRE - [ R4
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and it B AEE ] — A B A R R 2 R
principal cash flows. The difference between the “Total fH ] —5 2 W25 - 1&%’2%%@5‘2%{[{I
undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying BEEIERRELHE SRR - A B
amount at the end of reporting period” column represents 4 UM T N A R R A B
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the RV 2 IR (H -
instrument which are not included in the carrying amount
of the financial liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
Weighted Carrying
average More than amount at
effective  Repayable 1 month and Total  theend of
interest rate on  Less than less than undiscounted ~  reporting
per annum demand 1 month lyear  cash flows period
nE¥HE  RAEEX -BAZ AERRE RESEK
BRERIZ &8 -EAR -FR RERE  ZREE
% HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
[l T Titx Ti#x T T
At 31 March 2017 R=ZF-tE=A=t-H
Accounts payable TRt IR 010%0.25% 256,923 465,954 - 720,877 722,780
Other payables Hoito et IR - 4,699 = = 4,699 4,699
Amounts due to non-controlling K IEFE RS
shareholders = 52,684 = = 52,684 52,684
314,306 465,954 - 780,260 780,163
Loans commitments Bk = = = 80,100 80,100 -
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 6. $RITH-&

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

MEERBREEEERBEK-&

REEL R &
B & 2 RF 5 g 5 7 —

Weighted Carrying
average More than amount at
effective ~ Repayable 1 month and Total  theend of
interest rate on  Less than less than undiscounted ~ reporting
per annum demand 1 month Lyear  cash flows period
g AREX -BAE AMERE REEHR
BEREAR kKE -B@An -Er  RBRE  ZkEf
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Balt Titn T T T Tk
At 31 March 2016 R=B-A"E=A=1-H
Accounts payable TERTiRR 00F025% 421317 72,625 - 49398 493907
Other payables HbRef IR - 2,544 - - 2,544 2,544
Amounts due to non-controlling K FEFE IR HAUE
shareholders - 52,684 = - 52,684 52,684
Bank borrowings RITHEE HIBOR + 1.7% to 235,000 200,495 - 35495 435,000
HIBOR + 2%
FERIFFRE
mEEEERT
EES=NIDLC
711,545 273,120 - 984,605 984,155
Loans commitments Bk = = 12,150 12,150 =

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for its financial assets. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of
the financial assets, including interests that will be earned
on those assets, except for those financial assets which are
not repayable on demand, the analysis is based on when
the Group anticipates that the cash flows will occur. The
difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows”
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting
period” column represents the possible future cash flows
attributable to the instrument which are not included
in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
6. EMIA-#&
MEERBREEBERIEK-&

REEL R &
B & R F 50 g 9 7 —

Weighted Carrying
average amount at
effective  Repayable Between Between Total  the end of
interest rate on Less than lto 3 months Between Between undiscounted reporting
per annum demand 1 month 3 months tolyear  ltolyears  2-5years Undated ~ cash flows period
nEYS  ZRER =faA AHBRE  REEHA
RRERE ®8 -BEAR -E=A E-f  -E@F  CEIE R REEE  REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
(A Tt Tt Tk Tk Tk Tik Tik Tk Tikt
At31 March 2017 H-8-tE=p=t-A
Gross accouns reccivable BIRESH HongKong 2,924,120 94,577 J = = - - 308697 3017876
Prime rate +2% to
afixed rate of 18%
Fik
REENEMES
HEH18E
Less: impairment allowance B R (17,329) - - - - - - (17,329) (17,329)
Net accounts receivable BiURR - 2006791 94577 - - - - - 3001368 3000547
Bank balances - client accounss i fr&idh - FFRF 0.11% 53,055 596,171 - - - - - G690
Bank balances - general accounts  ${47 558k —— IR
and cash MiE 0.76% 784,390 71,716 13,379 - - - - 1,069,485 1,069,341
Loans and advances Ve Fixed interest 5 272,109 159,480 226,420 9,744 = = 663,753 636,578
rate at 9% to 24%
&R EEUE
Deposics and other receivables ~ $% R e 5 17,627 = = = = = = 17,627 17,627
Financial asses held for wading ~ $fF HEZ SR AE - - - - = = = 206814 206814 206,814
AFS investments kSR 1% o 12475% - - 1403 5,35 6,538 52981 64806 130,863 101,620
Financial assets designated as ar -~ #67E A fEA A R A R
FVTPL LERER 7% % 12% - - - 62,760 486,000 - - 548,760 491,729
761,863 1,234,573 174,262 2194315 498,82 52,981 271,620 6,287,896 6,173,426

Annual Report 2017 F3

127



126

gk E Uk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

tRMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

REEL R &
B & 2 RF 5 g 5 7 —

Weighted Cartying
average amount at
effective  Repayable Between Between Total  theend of
interest rate on Less than lto 3 months Between Between undiscounted reporting
per annum demand 1 month 3 months tolyear ltolyears  2-5years Undated ~ cash flows period
mERE  EREX =fiR AERRE  REEHK
Rz #& -@AR -ZZA E-F  -EpF  ZEIf Y  REAE  REE
% HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
A Tt Tt Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
At31 March 2016 RZB-7EZB=1-8
Gross accouns reccivable TEYC R 4 HongKong 3,287,577 48,166 = = = = -3 33480
Prime rate + 2% to
a fixed rate of 18%
BlREENRMEE
% 18E
Less: impairment allowance 4, BiER (17,329) s - = = = = (17,329) (17329)
Net accounts receivable TR - 30048 48,166 = = - - - 3318414 3317491
Bank balances - client accounts 7458k - KPR 0.12% 238,306 164,119 - = = = - 402,45 402,409
Bank balances - general accounts  ${f7 458k —— MR
and cash k54 024% 1,208,204 47,476 15,509 = - = - LI 1271007
Loans and advances eV et Fixed inteest - 5,572 50951 542,500 64,387 = = 683,910 627476
ate at 8% to 24%
A% B R4
Deposits and other receivables  f4: R L EMGIR - 7,647 - - - - - - 7647 7647
Financial asses held for rading ¥ {EEHZ LA E - - - - - - = 79,047 79,047 79,047
Financial assets designated asat & AR AR B A
FVTPL AL M 10% = - = 1,000 11,000 = = 12,000 10,076
ARS investments W 6.375% 0% 12.875% = - 825 7380 26,753 45,003 49,057 129418 101,539
4,724,405 285,33 67,285 550,880 102,640 45,03 18304 5904050 5,816,892
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

Fair values

The following table gives information about how the fair

values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis are determined.

Financial assets

THEE

AFS investments
THEERE
- Listed debt securities

- Lifi#as

Held for trading investments
BEEEZRE
- Listed equity securities

- EifRA#E S

Investments designated

as at fair value
EEREDMENRZRE

- Convertible notes

- TR

Fair value as at
31 March
R=A=t-H
ZRAE
2017 2016
ZE-+E |ZERE
HK$’000 HK$000
TEn T
101,620 101,539
200,814 79,047
23,424 =

Fair value

hierarchy

MERE

Level 2
Ll

Level 1

-

Level 3

£ZE

Valuation techniques

and key inputs
RERAR
EL PN {4

Quoted prices from brokers.
REZHRE -

Quoted prices in an active market.

G0 -

Discounted cash flow method and
binomial tree model, based on
spot price, volatility and

discount rate,

MRBRERE R HEX
BORE o R &
[tk DR RE %

rE TR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_ZT

—tFZA=+—ALFE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

£RIT A

[RE

&

T REI LA H REIEE N AEF R L
EREE NS R E R ER

Significant

unobservable inputs
EEMBLER
ZBAHE

NiA
TER

NiA
TER

7

- discount rate of 14%

- BREEH14%

Correlation between

significant unobservable

inputs and fair value
BEEMALER BARE
RMEZHERR

N/A

REH

N/A

Nl

- Discount rate increases/
decreases by 5%,
fair value would
decrease/increase
by approximately
HKS$nil/HK$nil in 2017
“REE—LE R
A/ FHs%  ARfE
8D /iy
i/ Fb
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TRMTH /&
Fair values — continued DARE-E
Correlation between
Fair value as at Fair value  Valuation techniques Significant significant unobservable
Financial assets 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs  inputs and fair value
R=A=1+-R EEMELEE EZMELRE/BANE
EHEE ZARE MERRE RERTRIESARE ZEARE HAREZHERE
2017 2016
8-tF ZT5F
HK$000 | HK$000
ThEn | T
- Unlisted debt securities 468,305 10,076 Level 3 Discounted cash flow method and - discount rate of 7-18% - Discount rate increases/
(subject to carly binomial tree model based on decreases by 5%,
redemption) spot price, volatility and fair value would
discount rate. decrease/increase
by approximately

HK$1,098,000/HKS1,104,000
(2016: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$381,000/

HK$2,000)
—F LR 5=E FiBB R ES R -BRERETEIR% BRI/ THs%
(MR ZIRA B TR A RRMERRD /S
BER - WR B 1,098,0008 7E./'1,104,0008 1T
(CF=AE D/
381,000%C,/2,000i70)
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the FAARGETE K FARRE > 8F — @ HLEE g

current year and prior year. [ AR g 43¢ o
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMI A&
[RE-&

EHEEEF=FEAABTEBZHK

Fair values — continued

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

Investments

designated

as at FVTPL

8 % Sy 1%

VADIWI=NiE =

MERZRE

HK$°000

T

As at 1 April 2015 A ZE—THAFEMH—H 20,384
Disposal A (10,000)
Realised loss in profit or loss NE 2 CESER (437)
Fair value losses in profit or loss 1= Ea/NS W= = 129
As at 31 March 2016 W oF—NFE=A=+—H 10,076
Purchases i 492,700
Disposal A (25,800)
Realised gain in profit or loss MBS 2 B E B 2,600
Fair value gains in profit or loss PR 2 A R Ek 12,153
As at 31 March 2017 W oZF—tHFE=H=+—H 491,729

The change in unrealised gains of HK$12,153,000
(2016: HK$129,000) for Level 3 investments held at the
reporting date are reported in “other gains and losses” in the

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities which are stated at amortised cost are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based

on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

REE AR 2R B RENARE
B £512,153,000% 70 (—F — /5 4F ¢
129,000%% 70) Z &2 &) JI R 555 B fn K&
oA A T i A8 R R T U 4R K
B EH -

2 B RS 9 R Y L A < R e
Al Y 2 S (B T AR R S A G BB
Ui 0 BT 1 2 i (B A T B E

AR T HE R I S A e B R A
AR EMEE LeMARZ
e T L BELAS By 22 3 SUAE AR A o
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair values — continued
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are

cither:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

*  not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and a broker, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and a broker on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a

net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the accounts receivable and payable with its retail
customers in the Group’s brokerage business (“brokerage
clients”) that are due to be settled on the same date with
reference to the settlement method set by the HKSCC and

the Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
HKSCC, a broker and brokerage clients that are not to be
settled on the same date, financial collateral including cash
and securities received by the Group and deposits placed
with HKSCC and a broker do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the consolidated statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only

enforceable following an event of default.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

tWMITE-&

ARE-E
CHEEHSHERE Y

T 5 7 2 B 6 6 9 JE R0 L AT W]
AT 2 G — R T R U
FEL S TR 2 % e S
T 4 b A

o AALEEE G MR R E
17

o ERVEE Ra A R R E R
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AR RIS H -

AR AR 4R ] S 9 PP R A5 A R )
([ A5 T 1) B A% S0 %5 7T 1Y 35 0T A1
BN Wk - AR 4R B A A T AT AR A B
A7 HE M) 1K 8 7 o A4 R B AC A [ H 3
S0 45 Y MR o B B AR S TE SUAE > i L
AEBMABUFET LR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair values — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting —

continued

As at 31 March 2017

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. TRITH-&

DIRE-&

CHEEHTHME R EH &

R-B—tE=A=+—H

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial
financial assets
Gross liabilities presented
amounts set off in the in the Related amounts not
of recognised consolidated consolidated offset in the consolidated
financial ~ statementof  statementof  statement of financial position
assets after financial financial Financial Collateral Net
impairment position position instruments received amount
R&& RG&
BEMRAR  HBRRR TERGRUBRRR
BEADED KEsCR gllz hEHREEH
SHEELE SHBEEE SREETH SHIA  CHERY BE
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AR TR TiEx TiEn TiEn TER
Accounts receivable arising from % RHEEE A
the business of dealing in ERPEEZ
securities and futures contracts i 3,156,232 (155,685) 3,000,547 (4,328) (2,915,915) 80,304
Gross Net
amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
set off in the in the Related amounts not
Gross consolidated consolidated offset in the consolidated
amounts  statementof  statementof statement of financial position
of recognised financial financial Financial Collateral Net
financial position position instruments pledged amount
liabilities
R&& R&&
BEMRAR  HBRRR TERGRUBRER
ER2  HHZEER EY hEHRBEEE
SHABEEE SHEESE SREETH $RIR CHEAERY BE
HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TR TiEn TiEn TiEn AR
Accounts payable arising from ERIMEEE RN
the business of dealing in EhpEEZ
securities and futures contracts FEfTHRIA 878,465 (155,685) 722,780 (4,328) - 718,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair values — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting —

continued

As at 31 March 2016

Gross

amounts of

recognised

financial

Gross liabilities
amounts set off in the

of recognised consolidated
financial statement of
assets after financial
impairment position
REA

B %

HEKCED  EHZE®D

6. $RITH-&
ARE-&
CHEEH A B —

R-ZEBE—-XRE=ZA=+—H

Net
amounts of
financial
assets
presented
in the Related amounts not
consolidated offset in the consolidated
statement of statement of financial position
financial Financial Collateral Net
position instruments received amount
¥

MHmRI R iR B S
2hlz Tk HE SR

SRERAE CRARLSE LSHEENRH sRIA  CUERY il
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Accounts receivable arising from % REEE A
the business of dealing in EEWEEL
securities and futures contracts  MEUUHRIA 3,579,043 (261,552) 3,317,491 (908) (3,276,659 39,924
Gross Net
amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
set off in the in the Related amounts not
Gross consolidated consolidated offset in the consolidated
amounts statement of statement of statement of financial position
of recognised financial financial Financial Collateral Net
financial position position instruments pledged amount
liabilities
REE &R
BBRRE  WMHRRE A MR A B &
BRIz OHR %W‘ Gikievail e
FHAKAHE SHMAENE  SRARTE ERLA  CIMERY lid
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T T T T T T
Accounts payable arising from EHINEEREAH
the business of dealing in ERMEEL
securities and futures contracts FEFTIRIA 755,479 (261,552) 493,927 (908) - 493,019
Note: The cash and financial collateral received/pledged as at 31 Bifek : R F—LE R ZF—NIE=H
March 2017 and 2016 represent their fair values. e E| Z BB KA
s R R A A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

7. REVENUE 7. W
2017 2016
—ZT—tF “E R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Brokerage commission K me 49,876 83,048
Underwriting and placing commission 38 R i 5 A < 43,520 45,042
Proof of funds commission G EHmE 12,680 16,000
Other commission oA AR 4 12 22
Interest income from loans and receivables &% MEU 3K IE 2 F Bl A
— clients —%F 377,502 410,131
— financial institutions — 4z A 1,495 1,710
— clearing house — &R 2 2
Financial assets designated as at fair value 16 5 F 4%~ SUAE R 18 4 e 2
through profit or loss (FVTPL) 2 e g E
— convertible notes — Al R 4,369 706
— debt securities —fEH I 9,148 -
Available-for-sale investments At ERE
— debt securities — (5B 7 55 5,518 5,767
Clearing and handling fee income KA R TFHEEWRA 6,203 15,108
Advisory fee income TGN 1,825 2,962
Management fee (gL 94 -
Property rental income E LA TON 1,356 744
513,600 581,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into five operating

8. oEER
2% 2 B B I 4 R A TR T B

divisions, namely broking, securities margin financing, A BHEAEEESRME S s DER

money lending, corporate finance and investments. These
divisions are the basis on which Board of Directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker,

reviews the operating results and financial information. The

Eo UUKREE - M EA N A *E
Fgr (B REEERORE) g%
MMM B E R 2 B - S EHM 2 £
BEHWMT -

principal activities of these divisions are as follows:

Broking
ma

Securities margin financing

IR DR R B Rl

Money lending
T A

Corporate finance

i ZERE
Investments

g&

The accounting policies of the operating segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies. For the

provision of stockbroking, futures and options broking and underwriting and

placements

PRAL IR AR AL - B R HIRE AL AR 5 LA R L8 I Wi

provision of securities margin financing

PR AR5 T R

provision of mortgage and consumer loans

NS VI RITE €N

provision of corporate advisory services

i 3t o ) AR 5

holding of investment properties situated in Hong Kong and financial

instruments

FEA MR B BOEY U LA &M TR

BB R BEUREA LR g5t
BOR AR o 7 B 280 0 R BL K 73 6 H]

purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating Z BT
resources between segments:
e all assets are allocated to operating segments other o RS A BRI DA KW K

than certain prepaid lease payments and property
and equipment, club memberships, goodwill, certain
other assets, certain prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, certain bank balances, certain tax

recoverable and certain deferred tax assets.

SO G R E R AR W
it & 2~ WA AT BOH - 1 K
JF Al iR~ R SRAT A B
F8 473 AT A e 5 T B S 473 2 A i T
EES > A E R E L 2K

BorHR o
e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other o BRES O ME S A K H: A FE AT IR

than certain accrued charges and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, bank

borrowings, certain tax payable and certain deferred

JE ~ R OIF R ERIE - SRAT AR
B T AT B T % A 03 LR A
HARS A ABC IR

tax liabilities. BT o
e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments o BROEE A SR B 2 S ms B B BT Bk 15

other than certain amortisation and depreciation,

A S D TR TR A A

certain finance costs, certain staff costs and certain A~ F Ay B AR DL R F A5 H Al

other expenses incurred for strategic planning by the

Group.
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8. FHWER-&
CONTINUED
Segment information about these divisions is presented WM Z 3 ER#E RN -
below.
Segment revenue and results PEKEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PR 2 ¥ 780 T 0 KA o b ik
results by reportable and operating segments: A4 B A B E SR 3 AT
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE - E—LFEH A —HIFFE
Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking  financing lending finance Investments Consolidated
BERE

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL

SEGMENT REVENUE FROM RENREF 2

EXTERNAL CUSTOMERS D EE 113,896 284,975 92,491 1,847 20,391 513,600
SEGMENT PROFIT A EH 55,110 284,895 90,362 1,697 98,621 530,685
Unallocated corporate expenses A/ Al > % (42,108)
Profit before taxation b i 488,577
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE B —NFEZH = —HIFFEE

Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
B R

g WA Mg REME % e
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T T T

SEGMENT REVENUE FROM RHENEZFE 2

EXTERNAL CUSTOMERS 73l 160,715 341,800 67,391 2,988 8,348 581,242
SEGMENT PROFIT pak: )it 92,354 338,589 60,653 2,213 78,050 571,859
Unallocated corporate expenses ENEEEER (27,921)
Profit before taxation B B 3 1) 543,938
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION -
CONTINUED

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

As at 31 March 2017

TEHER &

ITHMEEREE

DL o 452 T 04 o
g B 2 7 R A ST

W _E—tLF=H=+—H

Hh e it

Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking  financing lending finance Investments Consolidated
& SRE HE DERE RE &8
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
SEGMENT ASSETS PHEE 881,759 3,315,860 727,485 8,426 1,375,907 6,309,437
Unallocated assets (note 1) IWEE (fk) 533,906
Consolidated total assets HAGEAMN 6,843,343
SEGMENT LIABILITIES 28 487,600 256,923 7,472 - 5073 757,068
Unallocated liabilities (note 2) RV ECE & (Fifk2) 197,900
Consolidated total liabilities OB R 954,968
As at 31 March 2016 R-F—NEFE=H=+—H
Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking  financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
BERE )
4y SRE ME  ERE BE e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FikT FikT FikT kT FikT Tk
SEGMENT ASSETS AHEE 1,055,012 3,615,315 690,638 7,988 272,227 5,641,180
Unallocated assets (note 1) KNEEE (Mak1) 407,438
Consolidated total assets BRI 6,048,618
SEGMENT LIABILITIES 28 117,668 421317 3,211 - 719 542,915
Unallocated liabilities (note 2) K/ Bl &8 (M :2) 636,702
Consolidated total liabilities A A 1,179,617

1%6 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 4534 R A 7



8. SEGMENT INFORMATION -
CONTINUED

Segment assets and liabilities — continued

Note I:  The balance comprises bank balances of
HK$390,606,000 (2016: HK$257,060,000).

Note 2:  The balance includes amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders amounting to HK$52,684,000 (2016:
HK$52,684,000).

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Broking
HK$°000
Thn
Amounts included in the measure of 51761 1 ol i R 5%
segment profic or loss or segment /M BB FFA Z FUER -
assets:
Additions of property and MELRELRE
equipment 2,840
Depreciation of property and WERM 2 IE
equipment 958
Net recognition of impairment loss ﬂ#{%?’é‘/\gﬁ/\%kz
on loans to securities margin W 2 TR
clients -
Net recognition of impairment loss &5 R Z W {HEHZ
on loans and advances TR R -
Gain on disposal of property and #4352 i
equipment 5
Fair value gains on investment REMEZ ARG
properties -
Fair value gains on financial assets 4 B 7 2 /4 fU (IS
- held for trading —HERE 56
- designated as at FVTPL ~WEREANE
T4 i oA -
Commission expenses fH4:F 5 14,381

Securities
margin
financing
tRE
HK$’000
FER

rE TR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT—tF=A=1+—"HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

TEHER &

THEEREE-

FFaE1 « A B &5 B B 5 SR 1T 45 62390,606,000
T (

T
Jo) ©

ZF— N4 1 257,060,000%

BPRE2 A7 B A B £ 4 B A I 28 B e 3Rk

JE52,684,000% 7T (-
52,684,000 JT)

TN

HE=F == — I

Money  Corporate

lending finance  Investments Consolidated

BE  LXRE R&
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TiEx FiEn FiEn

- - 102

- - 120

1,612 - -

- - 64,270

- - 9,927

- - 12,153

= A

=]
HK$°000
TER

2,942

1,078

1,612

64,270

9,983

12,153
14,381
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION -
CONTINUED

Other segment information — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Amounts included in the measure of 57 | S HE 2k
segment profic or loss or segment M E T A Z 5 :

8. IHER-&E

Hihn HER — &
ME = F A=A = — I

Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
DI IRl
(b CHE ME AERE f" e

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HKS$000  HK$'000
T T T T T  TEx

assets:
Additions of property and EL T YA

equipment 1,800 = = - 1,592 3,392
Depreciation of property and MR IE

equipment 955 - 2 - 460 1,417
Net recognition of impairment loss &4 (R i 2 & F {2

on loans to securities margin W 2 e A

clients - 3,129 - - - 3,129
Net recognition of impairment loss &£ M #H 2 W (LR 2

on loans and advances AT - - 4,207 = = 4207
Gain on disposal of property and B4 % Rk fif 2 Wisi

equipment 112 - - = 95 207
Fair value losses on investment REMELAAEER

properties z = = = 6,150 6,150
Fair value losses (gains) on financial SREEZANEER

assets (i)

- held for trading ~FHERE 54 . - - (21,675)  (21,621)

~ designated as at FVTPL ~HEREARE

g AR - - - - (129) (129)

Commission expenses iEABa 23,535 = = = = 23,535
All segments’ operations are primarily located in Hong BT A 43 8 2 SEHS I A R A s T A AR
Kong and substantially all of the Group’s revenue is derived B 2 i A A8 R AR A IR A o
from Hong Kong.
Information about major customers FBRETEEFZER
During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, there NEE—EF—-LFE R _F—NE=ZA
were no customers contributing over 10% of the Group’s = HIEFERE WHEE S AEE R

total revenue.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##12 iR B R A &)
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/OTHER 9. Htt&EEWA " Hit W= RE
GAINS AND LOSSES =]
2017 2016
—E—tfF N AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx THEE
9a.  Other operating income 9a. HEEWRA
Bank interest income SRAT A B LA 2,292 3,326
Sundry income HoAtbusge A 4,973 2,552
7,265 5,878
2017 2016
—E—LF | SEF AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fax it
9b.  Other gains and losses 9b. HtlmkEE
Fair value changes on investment BEYEZ N AMHEE)
properties (note 18) (B 5F18) 64,270 (6,150)

Net recognition of impairment loss on
— loans to securities margin clients

BE e 18 2 RRERD 1 A

—$ T %5 (R

(note 24) HT (B aE24) - (3,129)
— loans and advances (note 23) — B R EGK
(it 5E23) (1,612) (4,207)
Net realised (losses) gains SETREATRS B 2 BB
on error trades (s 18) W aa 3 4 (35) 17
Fair value changes on financial assets BRVEE N SUEEE)
— held for trading —FHEEE 9,983 21,621
— designated as at FVTPL — ¥ 78 SRS AR
15 2 T 12,153 129
Realised (losses) gains on disposal of HEEMERE B
financial assets (Et8) dieaq
— held for trading —FHEHE (10,209) 39,707
— designated as at FVTPL — 678 By H S SUAE R
15 2 FfE 2 2,600 9,049
— available-for-sale investments — Al R 100 -
Net exchange gains (losses) [ sl s (B548) %A 569 (776)
Gain from a bargain purchase of a e I — ] o )
subsidiary Z Wt - 12,753
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary H B — ] i e 2 )
Z 1R - (1,476)
Gain on disposal of property and L EN &L PA &
equipment 5 207
Other gains (losses) HAbk 45 (E548) 2 (263)
77,826 67,482

Included above are losses from listed investments
of approximately HK$126,000 (2016: gains of
HK$61,328,000) and gains from unlisted investments of
approximately HK$14,753,000 (2016: HK$9,178,000).

FHIHEB AR EHRE 2 EBE
£1126,000% 7T (= F — /N4 I 3%
61,328,000% 70) XA H I L E
i %5 4914,753,000%5 76 (= F — N 4F ¢
9,178,000%5 JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

11

10. STAFF COSTS 10. E TR A
2017 2016
—E—tHF RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Tt
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration: B T.A{4% (R 5= S 4) -
Salaries and other benefits 4 M HoAth 4w A 20,484 19,441
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme AR RAE R FE Rk 857 513
21,341 19,954
FINANCE COSTS 11. @& B2
2017 2016
—E—+tHF RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET Tt
Interest on bank borrowings AT B2 FE 5,759 1,798
Interest on clients” accounts EEEFZHE 141 229
5,900 2,027
12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12. Bt Az Al
2017 2016
—E—+tfF TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT Tt
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after i fij i A 8 2 F0 % (51 A)
charging (crediting): A& IE -
Auditor’s remuneration 3 3,444 3,040
Listing expenses relating to spin off of a BRI — MM E AR 2
subsidiary B 7,076 9,051
Recognition of impairment loss, net Tl A e 48 2 e R TR A
— loans and advances (note 23) — B EBGR (B 5E23) 1,612 4,207
— loans to securities margin clients — RS EEF AR
(note 24) (B 5E24) - 3,129
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented HEY 2 KBE A HE
premises 1,580 997
Rental income from investment properties BEY)EH BN (1,356) (744)
Gain on disposal of property and equipment B )2 K il 2 Wicas (5) (207)

140
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE B.EERTHARREENS
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration paid or payable to each of the 10 (2016: BTS04 (2% N4 9%)
9) directors including the Chief Executive Officer was as R (RIETBRE) £ A ZHMan T
follows:
Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
Bz EE
Cham  Shum Tang Sun Siu Kam

Wai Ho, KinWai, NgaYan, Lung Man KaZiang, Hilam,  Leung Hung Hung

Anthony  Frankie  Grace HonLui KongYui  Henry  Alik  Ming SuiKwan HonMan  Total
REE SEE BEN RER  XME ERE RER HR® ARR  HEX 4E
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
Tikr Ti#n TEx TEx FiEx TEx TEx TEx TiEx TEx TEx

(Noteii)  (Noteiv) (Note vii) (Noteviii) ~ (Noted)  (Note i)
(ki) (W) (b (Rrekviii)  (BERED  (WEEi)
2017 ZE-tE
Fees ik - - - - 86 86 86 - - - 258
Other emoluments: Hibms
Salaries and other benefits %4 JE M A
(note ) (W) 316 - - - - - - - U6 T
Discretionary bonus (note vi) B 1E 4L (MfzEvi) 39 - 31 - - - - = = 18 88
Contributions to retirement 1 /R4 A
benefit scheme FiE 15N 16 - 15 - - - - - - 8 39
Commission i = = = = = = = = = = =
Total remuneration ame 371 = 341 = 86 86 80 = = 172 1,142
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

13. EERTHARRESEME -

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’ o
EMOLUMENTS - continued
Chief
Executive
Directors Officer
gz THER
Cham  Shum Tang Sun Siu Kam
Wai Ho, KinWai, NgaYan, Lung Man KaZiang, Hilam,  Leung Hung Hung
Anthony  Frankie  Grace HonLui KongYui  Henry  Alik  Ming SuiKwan HonMan  Total
RAE SBE HBEW EEE XES ZRR BEE HRY AR MEx £F
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS000
T T  TEx TEx TEx TEx T Tix TEx T TEx
(Noteii) (Noteiv) (Note vii) (Notevii) ~ (Noted)  (Note i)
(Rrakii) (W) (Wil (ki) (W3R (3R
2016 %-RF
Fees s - = = = 74 74 74 = = = 222
Other emoluments: Elbms
Salaries and other benefis ¥4 o H i
(note v) (ft7Ev) 312 385 = = = = = = 510 44 151
Discretionary bonus (note vi) B TE 4L (ki) 39 53 - - - - - - 75 18 185
Contributions to retirement K& A
benefit scheme i s 18 19 - - - - - - 18 8 03
Commission fis - 330 - - - - - - 598 - 928
Total remuneration LIRS 369 787 - - 74 74 74 - L 170 2,749

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan and Mr. Hung Hon Man are also the

director of the Company and their emoluments disclosed

above include those for services rendered by him as the

Director.

Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the directors

waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 March 2017

and 2016.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

Wb By 3 g A B b E SCSE AR IR B R )
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE BEERTHEABREEEM

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS — continued

Notes:

(i)  The Chief Executive Officer resigned on 7 April 2016.

(i)  The Director resigned on 7 April 2016.

(iii) The Director has been appointed by the Board as the Chief
Executive Officer on 7 April 2016.

(iv) The Director was appointed on 7 April 2016 and resigned on
28 April 2017.

(v)  The balances shown above for executive Directors, namely
Mr. Hung Hon Man, Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Shum
Kin Wai, Frankie, Lung Hon Lui and Ms. Tang Nga Yan,
Grace were mainly for their services in connection with the

management at the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(vi) Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.
(vii) The Director resigned on 1 March 2017.

(viii) The Director was appointed on 28 April 2017.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none (2016: none) was director of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The details of the

emoluments of the five (2016: five) individuals are as

—

()  FEATECAREA I NAE ] B H B
£ o

(i) FEEHR FE—NFMH L HBHT -

(i) ZEFH _F—-ANFHHLHEES
G TAT AT ERE -

(iv) ZEHRR_-FNFNALHERE
Bt Z & — LA A~/ H BHE -

(v) LSV B AT H S (B s A
WSS~ AT - BB L
A TCBRAE T Lo ) B9 A R R W RO
SEAEE AR A R AR AR B 2 R 4R
2 RHs o

(vi) MIIBAEALT) 2 MEACAR Y 508 2 400
A8 N 22 B e T b 2 v 5 A5 R T

o
(vii) ZHEFR T —EFE= — HEHE -

(viii) #ZEH P F—LFEMA =+ /\H#E
AT o

EBEME

A A B o7 i e RN el A (.
T NAF M) AN FEI SR >
FEIEHEOR E3C e L (ZF N4 -
fn) RN L2 B e T

follows:

2017 2016
—E—tfF SR RNF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
FET T T
Salaries, commission and other benefits 4 W4 M H A AR F) 7,378 8,241
Discretionary bonus P 1 1E AL 143 1,755

Contributions to retirement AR AE I 51 H 4t 2%
benefit scheme 36 58
7,557 10,054
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 1IB3.EERTHEZREEMNE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’ — 5

EMOLUMENTS - continued

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

B 4F 2 M7 LU T fiE

Number of employees

EE#A

2017 2016
—E—+tF RN
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
FHERT T 0
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 5 7€ % 1,000,000%5 76 - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #5 76 221,500,000 7C 3 1
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 % 2,000,000 7 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 It 22,500,000 7t 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001%5 76 2 3,000,000 JC - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T % 3,500,000 7. - -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001%5 76 24,000,000 JC - -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 %5 7T £.4,500,0005 I - -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 It 25,000,000 7t - -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7t 5,500,000 7t - 1
5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group R > A 4B [N 4 R AT SR e A
to the five highest paid individuals (including director of ML (BIEARANFESE RIEE) A
the Company and employees) and other directors of the O ) HoAth 2 S5 S AT T B 4 > VE AR
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the LEMBEAEEHZ FEWATRIE S > 5

Group or as compensation for loss of office. 1 7 B Bek 4 15 4 o
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BE_ZT—tF=A=1+—"HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

estimated assessable profit for both years. The Macau
Complementary Income Tax is calculated at the applicable
rate of 12% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

14. TAXATION 14. BLIH
2017 2016
ZE-tF | “EF-AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T T
Current tax: RPHABLIA -
Hong Kong 7 Us 72,620 80,181
Under (over) provision in prior years DUAEAF BE B R 2
(b 43 )
Hong Kong 7 Us 545 (289)
73,165 79,892
Deferred taxation R SIE Fd TH
Current year A AR BE 126 380
73,291 80,272
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the A R A5 B T e AR 4 B 22 A R

B F Lh16.5% w54 o WP A 15 TR
T Fi WA A E 2 A R RE SRR s A DA g
B = 12%5 5 -

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit AR JE 0 T B A 9 A S EL At 2 TT
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or i 2 N 2 B A 2 9 R
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2017 2016
—e—tF| E AR
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
FET T#IT
Profit before taxation Fod il Y ) 488,577 543,938
Taxation at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of & 7 s FI 15 Bi Bl %16.5%
16.5% 80,615 89,750
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 71 2 Fi A T GRS 2
purpose Z B i B 5,513 2,933
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax AN T B A 2 S 2
purpose (17,561) (8,441)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not A e wRAG ;1“*5@ HiEHEZ
recognised ol 5 % 2 4,046 921
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised Bl oK e 58 2 B TH Js 15 - (2,811)
Under (over) provision in prior years DUFE 4 FE R A 2
(e 438 1) 545 (289)
Others HAth 133 (1,791)
Taxation for the year A 4 BE R IH 73,291 80,272
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R B
2017 2016
—F-tF | ZFRF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
TR T IT
Final dividend for prior financial year, EAF bR BUE 2 R
paid — HK1 cent (2016: HK 1 cent) per BB — B Al (—F
share —NAE 1)
80,523 67,102
Special interim dividend by way of G i1 PN VA
distribution of shares in a subsidiary in T DA W 43 R 5%
respect of its spin-off and separate listing RfF )& 2w By 2 O SCUR
B 2R A S 128,171 -
Interim dividend for current financial year, B4} » A< B B4R & 2 H
paid — HK 1 cent (2016: HK 1 cent) per B — & B Al (—
share — N4 1) 80,523 67,102
Dividends recognised as distribution during 4% 4F J& il 58 £ 43 IRk 2 LB,
the year 289,217 134,204

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2017 of HKI cent per share, amounting to approximately
HK$80,523,000 (2016: HK$67,102,000) has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject
to the approval by the owners of the Company in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##12 iR B R A &)
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BB A
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable AN AV HEA N A B i i A 8 R T
to the owners of the Company is based on the following S G A
data:
2017 2016
—E-tF| “FRF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET Tt
Earnings iz A
Profit for the year attributable to the owners  Jf i 7 5 & B 3 A 21 F1 2
of the Company for the purpose of basic AN E A N AL AN
earnings per share it Al 341,945 463,714
2017 2016
ZB—tF | —“EF-AH
’000 ’000
= +
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Jf i 5l 55 & 1 55 4% 21 F1| 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share A BN RE T O H 7,497,055 6,656,015
For the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no diluted MBE T —-LFE R _F—NEZA
earnings per share was presented because there were no St —HILEEMSF - A W R A E
potential ordinary shares outstanding during both years. A 4 0 R B AT 2 VTR A i - (Rl

I 52 51 45 1 T LA
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

17. AN EERFEUARYERRE

Prepaid lease
payments Property and equipment
BREERE ¥R
Motor Furniture
Leasehold Leasehold vehicles Office and
land  Builidngs imporvements  andyacht  equipment fixtures Sub-total Total
agmx . . .
ALt BT £ REREE BOERE HAREE Nt fit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T T T
COST ORVALUATION ~ AAZfEfE
Ac T April 2015 REZ-RENA-R 103,780 33,800 1,749 28,660 10,652 762 75,63 179,403
Additions RE s = 475 1,565 1,908 n 3970 3970
Adjustment on revaluation T ff % = 2,082 = = = = 2,082 2,082
Disposals & - - - (3,529) (48) = (3,577) (3,577)
At 31 March 2016 RZF-AE=A
=+-A 103,780 35,882 2024 26,696 12,512 784 78,098 181,878
Comprising: ol
At cost A 103,780 = 2004 26,696 12,512 784 4,016 145,996
At valuation Hefh = 35,882 - - = = 35,882 35,882
103,780 35,882 2224 26,696 12,512 784 78,098 181,878
Additions RE = = 470 2,392 358 66 3,86 3,286
Adjustment on revaluation ~ Z ffj 3 % = (252) - = = = (2% (252)
Disposals HE - - - (560) = - (560) (560)
At 31 March 2017 REF—LE=H
=1-A 103,780 35,630 2,694 28,528 12,870 850 80,572 184,352
Comprising: o
At cost GG 103,780 n 2,694 28,528 12,870 850 44,942 148,722
At valuation HethfE - 35,630 = = = . 35,630 35,630
103,780 35,630 2,694 28,528 12,870 850 80,572 184,352
DEPRECIATIONAND  HTERfE
IMPAIRMENT
Ac 1 Apiil 2015 REE-RFEMA—H 24,699 - 1,45 15,214 9,579 709 26954 51,653
Provided for the year EERE 2450 624 195 3,110 908 % 4,801 7,311
Fliminated on revaluaion AL 8 - (624) N = = = (624) (624)
Eliminated on disposals B A B - = = (3,400) (44) = (3,444) (3,444)
At 31 March 2016 R-E-~E=R
=+-A 27,149 - 1,647 14,924 10,443 733 27,747 54,806
Provided for the year EERE 2450 626 289 3,648 752 7 5,34 7,792
Eliminated on revaluation B ff B4 44 . (626) = 5 - - (626) (626)
Eliminated on disposals i1 & B B4 - = - (560) = - (560) (560)
Ac31 March 2017 RoE—-tEZH
=4+-A 29,599 - 1,936 18,012 11,195 760 31903 61,502
CARRYING VALUES BEf
At31 March 2017 RZZ—LE=R
=+-A 74,181 35,630 758 10,516 1,675 90 48669 122,850
At 31 March 2016 RoE-RNEZH
=1-H 76,631 35,882 577 11,772 2,069 51 50,331 126,982

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##12 iR B R A &)



g R EE U R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -
continued

The above items of prepaid lease payments and property
and equipment are amortised or depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
of land, ranging from 38 to
40 years
Buildings The shorter of the remaining
lease term of the land on
which the buildings are
situated of 38 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements ~ The shorter of the remaining
lease terms of land on which
the buildings are situated,
and 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

The buildings of the Group were valued as at 31 March
2017 and 2016 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited on an
open market value basis. Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited
is not connected with the Group, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest and

best use of buildings is the current use.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

17 AN HEHERBURYERR

B-—&

DL FE A L R TE DL R W 2 R R TR
H 7 4% LA T 45 DL B AR 75 TR 3 8 =X
g
& T T2 RN AL
P38 £ 404F

M M e L 2 BT
FHWI38 E 404F
(LA 3 )

EMEEE MERAETLHZHT
FHIN B 104
(DA e 2y )

VR K i fiE 47104
YN ] 3E 54
A &R SEVAR

AL 2 M T TG K AT RY(E R R A
BRAFIR ZF—LFEL T —RFE=
H =4 — B 00 B i (E 2 0 A AT A
{H o K AAT ¥ 6 R ) AT PR 28 ] 2 AR
B NI e R LA A 2 AR K
AT 35 AT Rt B DA ) 3 2 AV (A

AL FHE T 2N B T 2 R
Je e A3 A& 2 H A& -
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BEC

—tF=A=+—HALFE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

17.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -
continued

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period,
the management of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair
value measurement. The management of the Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
buildings is the unit sale rate ranging from approximately
HKS$5,000 per square foot to HK$25,000 per square foot
(2016: HK$4,800 per square foot to HK$24,000 per
square foot), taking into account age, location and other
individual factors such as size and levels of building. A
decrease in the unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair
value measurement of the buildings by the same percentage

decrease and vice versa.

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
as at 31 March 2017 and 2016. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during the year.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would have
been included in these consolidated financial statements
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses of HK$17,616,000 (2016:
HK$18,219,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasechold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledge are set out in note 38

to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT—tF=A=1+—"HLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REM=E
2017 2016
—E-tF | ZFAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TR T# 7T
FAIR VALUE A e fE
At beginning of the year A 69,650 47,600
Additions arising from acquisition W s — ] B Jag 2 w1 B E AR
of a subsidiary (note 42) 2R E (B 5E42) - 37,300
Addition NE 379,750 =
Net change in fair value recognised Bt AR 2 s UMl
in profit or loss 5 ) 1 64,270 (6,150)
Disposals arising from disposal H B — ] B g 2 =) i EE AR
of a subsidiary (note 43) Z HE (Kf5E43) - (9,100)
At end of the year NG 513,670 69,650
2017 2016
—E-tF | —FAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TR T#E T
Unrealised gain (loss) on investment RWNERIA &Y i
properties included in other wEWE
gains and losses KREBIAE (EHR) 64,270 (6,150)

Investment properties located in Hong Kong with fair
value of HK$499,670,000 (2016: HK$57,550,000) as at
31 March 2017 was valued by Messers. RHL Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Messers. RHL Appraisal
Limited has appropriate qualification and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
location. The valuation was arrived at by adopting the
direct comparison method based on price information of
comparable properties and adjusted to reflect the condition

and locations of the subject properties.

The valuation of other investment properties situated in
Hong Kong was performed by the directors of the Company
with reference to recent market prices for similar properties
at similar locations for both years ended 31 March 2017
and 2016.

NRFHEZBREWER —F—LF=
H=+—HZ A {H%5499,670,000%5
JC (ZF—IN4F 1 57,550,000%7T) » J7
H B A 4 [ Slf7 0 R 7 e ST B SE A
Rl A7 7K R AT 58 B R A PR mlAG &t o
KAFTRHEB M AR A B GH 2
Y K A AT A B L 2 2 A
B 4855 - A B AL (8 9 AR 48 7T Lk 2%
2 AE G G R B AN B AR B
H A R DL S ) 3 2GR D K b B

REBEEZE_F-tEHFL_F—NF=H
=+ —H 1L WA E 2&"%%%5
27 A W B 2 S 36 2 R T 8
B A% T 365 62 17 7 s 2 LAt 45 B W) o
FTAbiME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest

and best use of properties is the current use.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties is the unit sale rate ranging from
approximately HK$4,500 per square foot to HK$52,000
per square foot (2016: HK$5,400 per square foot to
HK$47,000 per square foot), taking into account age,
location and other individual factors such as size and levels
of building. A decrease in the unit sale rate would result
in decrease in fair value measurement of the investment

properties and vice versa.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the management of the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the management of the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the end
of each reporting period, the management of the Group
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurement. The management
of the Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs can be derived from observable quoted prices
in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available,
the management of the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the

Company.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under fair
value hierarchy as at 31 March 2017 and 2016. There were

no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

All of the Group’s investment properties interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

No investment properties were pledged as at 31 March
2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEEE
Trading
rights in
Hong Kong Club
exchanges memberships Total
ERBRBT
ZRERE EFEE a5
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T Tt T T
COST 5%
At 1 April 2015 and WZE—HAEWM A —H &

31 March 2016 —E—-ANE=ZA=+—H 5,850 6,701 12,551
Addition VNNER = 8 8
As 31 March 2017 wW_E—+tE=A=+—H 5,850 6,709 12,559
IMPAIRMENT BAE
At 1 April 2015, AZFE—HEMNHA—H -

31 March 2016 TE -ARNEZA=Z=+—HK

and 31 March 2017 E—-tHFE=H=+—H 3,196 400 3,596
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2017 A Z—tLE=ZA=+—H 2,654 6,309 8,963
At 31 March 2016 W _Ez—-NE=HAH=+—H 2,654 6,301 8,955

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to HK$1,053,000 (2016:
HK$1,053,000) were no longer utilised to generate profits
to the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing on
these trading rights, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on secondary market prices and no
impairment was made as at 31 March 2017 and 2016. The
recoverable amounts of other trading rights with carrying
value of HK$1,601,000 (2016: HK$1,601,000) held by
the Group have been determined with reference to the
recoverable amounts based on a value-in-use calculation
which was similar to impairment testing on goodwill.
Particulars regarding impairment testing on the other

trading rights are disclosed in note 21.

AEBHZEHRRERLBE T B
1,053,000%5 70 ( ~ & — 754 1 1,053,000
W I0) 2 38 5 BE T R AR A DA B AN 4
AR T R o A B LA 2T B AT WM
RS > ATl b &4 CRE - F i
LiEmEE - R FE—LER R
—ANEZA=Z+—H WG EEE - AL
[ 5 A B 1 (E 45 1,601,0009 0C (&
—7NAE 11,601,000 50) 2 HiAth A2 b HE
(] i |] 4 %E > B2 % A ] &
R {5 (L B v (B 2 L A )
FRARL) T 7 R o At A2 B HE 2 Tk (A
R A B 21 R B R o

Annual Report 2017 F3

127



124

gk E Uk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

Intangible assets amounting to HK$6,309,000 (2016:
HK$6,301,000) represent club memberships. For the
purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on
the second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No
impairment loss was recognised in years 2017 and 2016
with reference to the recoverable amount of the club

memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading

rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

19. B EE— &

%y 816,309,000% o0 (= F — N4
6,301,000%5 JG) 2 ¥ & & 5 €& r &
Eomiem g BEmImNE > K
R[] 4 R TG AR AR T S (AR
ERATEE - 2% G g5 ik
Bl &R N F—-LERF RN
AF Sl e R (B 4R o

ARFEBRR > LR G T a
Al 45 FR A 4R 309 -

20. GOODWILL 20. &
HK$000
T T
COST D%
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 REF—HEMA—H -
and 31 March 2017 TE-ANE=ZA=1+—H XK
—E—tHE=H=+—H 15,441
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 WoFE—AENHA—H -
and 31 March 2017 “E -RNE=ZA=Z+—HXK
—F—-tH=A=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 March 2017 N E—LE=H=+—H 15,441
At 31 March 2016 R _E—ARNE=A=+—H 15,441

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 19 and 20, respectively, have been
allocated to the broking CGU (see note 8 for details of
segment information). The carrying amounts of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) and certain trading
rights as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 allocated to the
broking CGU are as follows:

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

21. BEREMRZE 2R ERR

3 Tl AR B RE 19 Ko 2022 T R E
RERZHELFEC B EKLD
MR BB (B B2 T E R Z R
7 2 BB RE8) o 70 BiL 2 AL AL 7 B 2 A
B 2 R (B R A E R R &
AT R F-LER TR
FZA=Z+—HBREENT

(a) Goodwill (2 BE
Broking
FEES)
HK$’000
T
Carrying value as at 1 April 2015, W_FE—HAEMNHA—H -
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 CE-RNEZHA=Z=FT—H &
ZE LA =Z T —HZIREHE 15,441
(b) Trading rights b)) X5
Carrying value as at 1 April 2015, ATE—FAEMNA—H -
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 TR -RFE=ZHA=Z1—H K
“E —-EFE A=t B 2ZIRAEE 1,601

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
goodwill and certain trading rights have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2016: 12%) and at zero (2016: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to
fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU.

EEBHERE TR SR B
A 2 a] i (] 4 36 R 95 76 A E (A 51
P T o AR B IR AR Y R
Z RN BEE LL12% (T —N4E
12%) Z BB DA BT (T — N4
F) ZWMEFRET B SR EEN - HE
ZWERBTERBEENERZ FER
Bo BRI A Z KB RLE
MBS IGE R MEMEE - S8
JE AT > AR AR 5 2 AT Al & 2 Al g 2
T 58 N G S B A0 B B B 2 At T
Wi T 4 K A8 A BN B B 2 A T ER
TH{HE -
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

22.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits

with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

2. HMEE

Hoftn & 2 EBACKRN T AR5 B )
BT 235 E I KA S o A B R
E‘EK%‘E °

non-interest bearing.

23. LOANS AND ADVANCES

23. ERR B

2017 2016
—g—tE | “EoAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Fixed-rate loan receivables TE ] 2R IS 4 K 642,628 631,914
Less: allowances for impaired debts T P (B S A (6,050) (4,438)
636,578 627,476
Secured PEE el 75,141 376,176
Unsecured 4t A1 561,437 251,300
636,578 627,476

Analysed as: TR
Current i B 630,971 565,435
Non-current IF L Bl 5,607 62,041
636,578 627,476

At 31 March 2017, loans and advances with carrying
amount of HK$75,141,000 (2016: HK$376,176,000)
are secured by first mortgage of properties in Hong Kong
with an aggregate fair value of HK$133,700,000 (2016:
HK$580,800,000); carrying amount of HK$115,800,000
(2016: HK$25,650,000) are covered by second mortgages
of properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate fair value of
HK$1,044,410,000 (2016: HK$105,020,000). The fixed
rate loan receivables carry interest ranging from 9% to 24%
(2016: 8% to 24%) per annum.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##12 iR B R A &)

R_ZF—tFE=HA=+—H E®E
8 £575,141,000% 70 (=& — N 4 -
376,176,00035 7T ) 2 B8 3K S Bkl AN
FOAE £5133,700,000% 78 (& — N4 ¢
580,800,000 JC) 2 Y 2 5 —1%
18 1E 2 K 5 BRI H £5115,800,0007
TG (R —754F 125,650,000 00) 2 £
K B GR HR AR S o {H £51,044,410,000
W (2% — 754 £ 105,020,000% 78)
2R E L E IR EAE SR
7E ) %6 B U B 34 A T 24 8 (-
FT—NAF L 8 24H) ZAEFHRELAE, o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 78%
(2016: 75%) of the total loans and advances are due
from the Group’s five largest borrowers. The balance
includes an aggregate amount of HK$495,000,000 (2016:
HK$468,429,000) which is neither past due nor impaired,
of which the carrying amount of HK$55,000,000 (2016:
HK$335,000,000) is secured by a first mortgage of a
property in Hong Kong with an aggregate fair value of
HK$95,000,000 (2016: HK$501,000,000) and carrying
amount of HK$100,000,000 (2016: nil) is secured by a
second mortgage of a property in Hong Kong with an
aggregate fair value of HK$1,000,000,000 (2016: nil). The
remaining carrying amount of HK$340,000,000 (2016:
HK$133,429,000) represent unsecured loans with personal
or corporate guarantees. The management of the Group
believes that the amount is recoverable given the collateral
is sufficient to cover the entire balance for secured loans
and no recent history of default of borrowers for unsecured
loans. The directors of the Company believe that the

allowances for impaired debts are sufficient.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

23. ERRBR-E&

A 2R R R BR R 78% (-
T— N 75%) J2 E U A & A
KAE RN Z K IH > AL B ¥R
S EBE 2 8 W o %S BB TS AR
£%495,000,000% o6 (& — N4
468,429,000%5 J0) 3 4 481 1A IR 48 5 1
ZEKIE > E R THENE £555,000,000 8 7T
(. FE—7N4 1 335,000,000% 70) 2 &
RSB R 48N 7B 495,000,000 90
(ZFE—754 1 501,000,000% J6) 2 —
MR LY P Rk e L (W L T}
I T {8 5 100,000,000% 7T (& — 75
W IE) X ERKBKBBEANRES
1,000,000,000% JC (& — /N 4F : 4%)
ZHEWBWEZE FREAE S IEA o K
fif I T {£.340,000,000% 7C (2 — 7%
1 133,429,000%5 o) 18 2 A B A
ER/NICTE TR U e S o B e i L
i B DA 25 A IR Bk 2 2 SR A R
S B K 2 A SO I i AT R AR
Bk o A G M AE 5% & L T DU
W[l o AR 2\ W) R A Dok (L S 8
By A o

Movements in the allowances for impaired debts are as WEEB S E®Hmr
follows:
2017 2016
ZEB-tF | FNEF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
FExT T#H T
Balance at beginning of the year AT &5 R 4,438 4,511
Impairment losses recognised e 8 3 s 18 1,612 4,207
Write-off g - (4,280)
Balance at end of the year AR 6,050 4,438

Loans and advances are netted off by allowances for
impaired debts of HK$6,050,000 (2016: HK$4,438,000)
which included individual allowance of HK$nil (2016:
HK$nil) and collective allowance of HK$6,050,000 (2016:
HK$4,438,000) respectively. No further impairment
allowance was considered necessary based on the Group’s

evaluation of collectability.

B S BT 43 R el W R 5 Y A
6,050,000%5 70 ( & — 754 : 4,438,000
W oT) BT 8 o E 43 Bl AL EE A I B
BEEW I (2R —N4F  Fon) k4
& 1 1#6,050,0004 0 (ZF — N4 ¢
4,438,000 70) o MRS 4 [H] i 1] 3K
TR B 514G R B AFHEE—
T AE A

Annual Report 2017 F3

127



178

gk E Uk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

23. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued

The loans and advances with a carrying amount as at 31
March 2017 of HK$636,578,000 (2016: HK$627,476,000)

are neither past due nor impaired. In view of the repayment

23.

history of these borrowers and collateral provided, the
directors of the Company consider the amount to be

recoverable and of good credit quality.

There are no loans and advances that are past due but not

impaired.

BERRBR-E&
MRo-F—tE=ZHA=+—H E®
{H £5636,578,000%5 G (& — N4 ¢
627,476,000 7T ) 2 B 7K B B Ay If 4
i IR B - R R E AN R
FEC Bk DL K BT 4R 4 2 SR A > AR
R 5 A R E B ] A ] B B
RIFEEHER -

Slf7 48 L 38 393 AT R 990 (L 2 K B K

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24, EWERIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Accounts receivable arising from the business #5 % B & EH P EAEZ
of dealing in securities: JE S R T
— Cash clients —HBE®F 13,641 8,605
— Margin clients: —REBEEEF
— Directors and their close family —HERBEEZERR
members FIG B 1,819 453
— Other margin clients — HffRE e % F 2,921,480 3,286,201
— A broker — A - 22
— Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company — — & i 1 e 45 B A KR A A
Limited 65,591 35,375
Accounts receivable from futures clearing W& EE A X)W P E Ak
house arising from the business of dealing in B 31 & &5 8 2 E IR BETE
futures contracts 15,345 4,164
3,017,876 3,334,820
Less: Impairment allowance W R R B (17,329) (17,329)
3,000,547 3,317,491

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days
after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures

clearing house are one day after trade date.

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$162,000 (2016:
HK$407,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period but which the directors of the Company
consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT
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EEHHEEN/Z S HEWE > T
BB IRER IEH &850 A2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which

are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

24, EWERIE — &

390 39 OR L 00 e e (> B
%P EWCRIAT = > A B R AT (i

period, the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as FEE AR WE
follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TH# T
0 — 30 days 0% 30K 125 375
31 - 60 days 31E 60K - 1
Over 60 days 60K 37 31
162 407

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of HK$13,479,000 (2016: HK$8,198,000) are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting
period and the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that the amounts are recoverable.

Loans to securities margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of HK$15,308,956,000
(2016: HK$15,604,593,000). Significant portion of the
pledged securities are listed equity securities in Hong
Kong. The loans are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date and carry interest typically at Hong Kong
prime rate + 2% to 4.45% per annum as at 31 March
2017 (and in some cases the rate may go up to 18% per
annum) (2016: Hong Kong prime rate +2% to 4.45% per
annum, and in some cases the rate may go up to 18% per
annum). Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios
for calculating their margin values. Additional funds or
collateral are required if the outstanding amount exceeds the
eligible margin value of securities deposited. The collateral
held can be repledged and can be sold at the Group’s
discretion to settle any outstanding amount owed by margin

clients.

RS R > BRTE E 413,479,000 45
JC (T — 74 1 8,198,000% 7C) 2 M
WL & P 2 MR TA 2 3 06 4 4 7 486 ek
B> ARAFEFER LA WAL
W ] o

& THEFERBEEF ZERKYUEF
IR AR AREEZ AR
B /515,308,956,000 4% G ( & — /N4 -
15,604,593,000% JC) » & W b 1 B A
B A B R 2 R 0 A o R
TE—-LE=ZA=Z+—H  HHEBEX
TE 8 A H A5 2B 0 e K > N0 R
2 4F F) 3 7 s e 1B B R SR 2 %24 .45
JE (5 RS LA B A R ] e BT = 4R
FIZI8JHE) BB (ZFE—NE  Hilk R
18 BRI JE 554 4508 > A FE g
HBM KA GE E T RAEFR18H) o 3
KR TR EZRE S L RUGFHE R
RS EE AR ERFEBHEF
ANZBEHFMAEEREFESMEME Bl g
BOR K PR ALEEINE & s - B
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 44% (2016:
45%) of the total loans to securities margin clients was
due from the Group’s ten largest securities margin clients.
The balance due from the ten largest securities margin
clients includes an aggregate amount of HK$1,300,258,000
(2016: HK$1,469,212,000), which is neither past due
nor impaired and is secured by clients’ pledged securities
with an aggregate fair value of HK$4,863,529,000 (2016:
HKS$6,144,376,000). The Group believes that the amount
is considered recoverable given the collateral is sufficient
to cover the entire balance on individual basis. No ageing
analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business of securities margin

financing.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable are
margin loans with an aggregate outstanding balance of
HK$20,978,000 (2016: HK$24,726,000) which are not
fully secured. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk on these loans, with exposure spread over a
number of clients, and which are closely monitored by the
Group. The Group held collateral of listed equity securities
with a fair value of HK$4,452,000 (2016: HK$7,226,000)
at the end of the reporting period in respect of these
loans. Impairment allowance of HK$17,329,000 (2016:
HK$17,329,000) has been made for margin loans with an
aggregate outstanding balance of HK$20,978,000 (2016:
HK$22,299,000). No further impairment allowance is
considered necessary for the remaining margin loans based

on the Group’s evaluation of their collectability.

In determining the allowances for impaired loans to
securities margin clients, the management of the Group
considers the margin shortfall by comparing the market
value of stock portfolio and the outstanding balance of loan
to securities margin clients individually. Impairments are
made for those clients with margin shortfall as at year end

and with no settlement after the year end.
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24, EWERIE — &

B 7B SRR SR PRt 2R
HIT44% (ZF — IS4 1 45%) A& E IR
AEE T RKBHRBEEF ZHH >
A B2 [ T M B AR R B 2 1 B o
G N8 o Rt B U R ook
%6 451,300,258,0009 70 (. FE — /5 4F ¢
1,469,212,000% JC) Sf7 4 461 17 R 48 ol (E
Jo DL AR FU(H £54,863,529,0009 JC (-
F—N4F 1 6,144,376,000% 00) 2 F T
HE A 78 5 AF SRR 2 BIE o 3B R HE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Movements in the allowances for impaired debts in respect

of loans to securities margin clients are as follows:

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

24, EWERIE — &

5T B 5 IRE S B 2 082 WA 1
B ST

2017 2016

—e—tF| —SF AR

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT T T

Balance at beginning of the year ) S5 R 17,329 14,602
Net charge for the year AN 0 B AR - 3,129
Write-off T8 - (402)
Balance at end of the year A R 17,329 17,329

In addition to the individually assessed allowances for
impaired debts, the Group has also assessed, on a collective
basis, a loan impairment allowance for accounts receivable
arising from the business of dealing in securities with
margin clients that are individually insignificant or accounts
receivable where no impairment has been identified
individually. Objective evidence of collective impairment
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, internal credit rating and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables. No significant amount of collective
impairment allowance is considered necessary based on the

Group’s evaluation.

B 7 51 3t S Al 368 (L 55 2 #4441
A S [ R L O O e S H AR
Fr Z S5 A T AR ) 3t 37 JF T )
W BRI - LBl 0 A8 7 M g RE A B
(L 9 B SR T > L o R VEE gl i
R T A AT 9901 T Al o 3 B DR 2
ok TIRGEATRNE P E /€S R
5 BERE AR - DA B B e sk JE 2 4 A B
A B 5% 5 4 J7 A6 % 1 UL 2w BB A A
B o MR ASE W 2 Al 385 P AR
HH R R 114 R (R A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising

from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due

24, EWWBRTE — 18
WAL EBEL Y RBER P K
BRI o A% A T A+ K

from certain related parties. The details are as follows: HF -
Maximum Maximum
amount amount
outstanding  outstanding  Market value  Market value
during the ~ duringthe  of pledged o pledged
Balanceat  Balanceat  Balanceat  yearended  yearended  securitiesat  securities at
1 April 1 April 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2015 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
HE Bz
ZE-RE ZE-LF EMZEAR ERZEER
R-2-5F R-F-7F WMo-tF ZA=-B ZA=t-B Z%-AF ZR-tF
BA-B  BA-R ZR=t-R LEERER LEERER =A=1-H ZA=1-A
Name 5 &R &R 268 RRESE ARELE 2T LT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T
Mr. Lung Hon Lui (Director of the RS EE
Company who resigned on 1 March (R ZF—tLHF=H—AREEZ
2017) and close family members RRAEE) RERFERA 129 = = 356 63 13,326 =
Mr. Hung Hon Man HEUEE
(Diector of the Company), (FARESH)
close family members and a ZEREME LM ER
controlling entity 796 453 1,819 2,514 2,673 393,992 771,490
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan s ahibie
(Director of the Company who (RZF-AEEALH
resigned on 7 April 2016) BEZANIES)
and close family members REBBRERE 641 = = 1,458 = 8,834 =
Mr. Ho Kwok Kwan MRS L
(Former key management (RZF-REFAZTH
personnel of the Group RtHAZEHEEERAR)
who passed away on REBRIEMA
20 October 2015)
and close family members 406 = = 1,015 = = =
The above balances are repayable on demand and bear DL b &5 Bk 75 28 0 2 oK B0 I i B At
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates TR 78 4 % 5 AR Ik 2 ) S 25 19 o 3

offered to other margin clients.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 25. BERE
2017 2016
—g-tF| TN
HKS$’ 000 HK$000
FET T o0
Held for trading: FEEH
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong SR A A &N 206,814 79,047
Designated as at FVTPL: 1608 By 4 s SR ME N 1R 25 T
Convertible notes (Note a) AT 4 EE A (B fa) 23,424 -
Unlisted debt securities (Note b) IE LT AR B i 5 (K 5ED) 468,305 10,076
491,729 10,076
Available-for-sale investments: Ak G
Debt securities (Note c) B #B 5 (Fff 5Ec)
— listed in Hong Kong — A& B 37,399 27,787
— listed overseas — AN BT 64,221 73,752
101,620 101,539
800,163 190,662
Analysed as i
Current i B 240,282 89,123
Non-current IE i H) 559,881 101,539
800,163 190,662
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES -
continued

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

The Group held convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$19,500,000 as at 31 March 2017 which were
issued by Hong Kong listed companies, bear fixed interest
of 8% per annum and will be due in 2017 (subject to
carly redemption). The fair value of the convertible notes
amounted to HK$23,424,000 as at 31 March 2017.

The Group is entitled to convert the whole or any part(s)
of the principal amount into ordinary shares of relevant
issuers at a price determined with reference to the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes.

The fair values of the convertible notes as at 31 March
2017 were estimated by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers not connected with
the Group.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group held two (2016:
one) redeemable bonds with principal amounts of
HK$460,000,000 (2016: HK$10,000,000) which were
issued by listed companies and bears fixed interest of 7% to
12% per annum (2016: 10% per annum). The redeemable
bonds were issued on 4 March 2015 and 16 December
2016 and will be due in 2017 to 2018 (2016: due in 2017)
(subject to early redemption). Management classified these
redeemable bonds as designated as at FVTPL since these
investments contain embedded derivative.

The fair value of the redeemable bond as at year ended
31 March 2017 and 2016 was estimated by Messrs. RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers not connected with the Group.

The Group held listed debt securities with principal
amount of HK$77,015,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$50,795,000) which bear fixed interest of 1% to 12%
per annum (2016: 8.25% to 12.875% per annum) and will
be due in 2019 to 2021 (2016: due in 2017 to 2020). The
Group also held listed perpetual debts with principal amount
of HK$25,559,000 (2016: HK$49,610,000) as at 31 March
2017 which bear interest of 6.375% to 6.875% per annum
(2016: 6.375% to 6.875% per annum). The fair value of
these debt securities amounted to HK$101,620,000 (2016:
HK$101,539,000).

The fair values of the debt securities as at year ended 31
March 2017 and 2016 were estimated with reference to the
price quoted by independent brokers.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##12 iR B R A &)

25. BERE-E

Wik

(a)

(b)

(0

A [ F A i A s TS AR AT I R
—E—tLHEEZA=Ett—HZAESHE L
19,500,000%5 JC 2 A] i i 22 9% - A B
EIEY 57 £i Ui nckaayilb: Yk s Wi
A T — B AEE ( T%% HAEm) o
WERBEEER -F - EF=H
= —HZ A RMEF523,424,0009 0 ©

7R AL [ W] 4 255 W] R SR AR 2 AR
R AT &1 i B AFD A% #%Tiﬁlﬂﬁmﬁ@z
22 BT ] 473 A < A 2 AT B
TN LR -

AR - LEZH =
H 2 % SU{E )3 p B A 4 [ 30 46 ) 2
Ja 7. SRS b R A AT K R AT R (EL R R A
BRZA Al At o

W oFE—LFE=ZH=1+—H &%
I T I T /A1 7 1 N ol
£5460,000,000% o0 (& — N A4F
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ﬁE‘%TB*IEHa#E’\EIJﬁGgZ? A4
ZAMHBE - FE—NHE+_H+NH
AT G:Zﬁ LEF T N\F
B (B —RNF R FE— LR
W) (AT T HRATHE []) o fy i I AE %
5 A RATA T B > 45 BE i 45
A 0] 8 35 4 4 36 0 B H S FU(E Y
8 1 fERR -

V@fa%’?ﬁ/\\—? tiﬁ&—?
$ A=1t—HZ AR ET)H i ZFE
I 40 2 28 <7 25 (LB 47 A A
AT R B R A BR A F A 5t -

AEHEBAER -F—ELF=H= Jr#
H 2 7R 4 %6 577,015,000 ¢ (&
—NAE 1 50,795,000% 1) 2 RS
B ﬁ%ﬁ"%##lmfﬁﬂilfﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions during the course of conducting
its regulated activities in its ordinary course of business.
Such clients’ monies are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts. The Group has recognised the
corresponding accounts payable to respective clients and

other institutions.

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 1.15% (2016: 0% to 0.9%) per annum with an

original maturity of three months or less.

26.

27.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

RITER-FFKRF

AR S T J RS I AT 2 B
e O D T WS TRIE 495 % e L A
A2 4T 4 o UL H P AR T AR —
fif 5 22 181 5 S SRATHRF o A% 4 1 2 7
R 151 7 B 5 5 H A S £of 2
I -

RITEH - —REFRRE

ARFEBEAEEEAZ B U
B i 355 ) R (4 F| A F0JE £1.15
JE (TFE N 0EE0.9H)) FHE
JREH H A = AR H 8 0h R 2 s R AT
Tk e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

28. EE{JBRIE

2017 2016
—E-tF | ZEFAF
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FERT T# 7T
Accounts payable arising from the business of 7 B B ¥ HE L2
dealing in securities: AT BRI -
— Cash clients —WHEeRF 441,434 61,478
— Margin clients —EEEF 256,923 421,317
— Clearing houses — & E T - 224
Accounts payable to clients arising from the M E AL EEHEBKFELEZ
business of dealing in futures contracts JEAT % FRRTE 24,423 10,908
722,780 493,927

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
clients and securities clearing houses are two days after trade

date.

Amounts due to securities margin clients and future clients
are repayable on demand and carry interest at 0.25%
(2016: 0.25%) per annum. No ageing analysis is disclosed
as, in the opinion of directors of the Company, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature

of business of securities margin financing.

Included in accounts payable to margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities are amounts due to
directors of the Company, their close family members and a
controlling entity of HK$90,000 (2016: HK$756,000).

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits received
from clients for their trading of futures contracts on the
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “HKFE”). The
excesses of the outstanding amounts over the required initial
margin deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to
clients on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of

business of futures contract dealing.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

WA BL 2 % 5 R o5 A 5 B 2 BRI
EHGEBMAZSHHKEMA -

RBEHRBEEF KB EF KIEHA
A B R IR AR I H 420,258 (& —7~
M 0.2508) ZFEFIREE - RS
HEEMEEB 2HE AR EH
By BEBE 4 M N0 AR AME A > IR B
$E B 7% IR % 40 AT -

BAEEEGELZEMEEEER
WRIE > G AEREAT AN A - 5%
2 B R N B S — [ 0 3K
TH90,000¥5 7T (—F— /N4 ¢ 756,000
Jo) o

MESHEREBPELEZEBMNER
HRIH > A % 5 LA 7 s 0 B
Lo A R\ (TR ) HE &
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o HNEF EREHEE - BRI E
BRRBEXET2ME > AN EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO 29. RFE IR B RKE
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on B A Sy AR S0 S R JE N R
demand. 7 8 o
30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. RITEE
2017 2016
—EB—tHF S ANGS
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
FHET TH#: T
Secured A LA
Variable rate borrowings A A A A B - 435,000
Within one year — R - 435,000
The interest rates of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March AEBMZERER _-F - XNE=ZA
2016 range from HIBOR + 1.7% to HIBOR + 2%. = B2 By P A R AT R
P27 E 2 A i AT R 3E 4R B 2
E o
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had banking facilities R_FE—-LFE=HAH=+—H  KxEH
totalling HK$935,000,000 (2016: HK$975,000,000). A 4 4£935,000,000 70 (= F— /N4 ¢
These banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’ 975,000,000 7C) Z $RATI5 B4H o M5
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and WOTFEEEEURS 2 MR K&
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of AEBETYWEZHGT  URALTA
the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 38 to the B ZAAEREASER - ALELC
consolidated financial statements. I 2 RE RE N OOR AR A I ES I A It
AE38 P HE o
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had undrawn amounts W oE—tLtE=H=+—H > &%
under these banking facilities of HK$935,000,000 (2016: 7 I 55 SR AT 5 SRR PR R R B K
HK$540,000,000). #45935,000,000% 7T (—F — N 4F ¢

540,000,000%% JG)
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HE_Z

—tEZA=+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

31.

DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities

recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:

31. IEER 1E

AT BIRAAEE e EAEE RS2
TORIEBLIH (HE) E\%U&E“@J

Collective
Accelerated impairment
(decelerated)  Revaluation  Revaluation on loans
tax of of AFS and
depreciation  properties  investments advances Total
E GAL&) Eftaft EXREXR
WERE EffNX HERE ZERHE At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T TH#TT T TH#T T
At 31 March 2015 A_F-RFE=HA=1—H (1,012) 6,212 (706) (5) 4,489
Credit to profit or loss FEARSEERS (HE14)
for the year (note 14) 380 - - - 380
Charge (credit) to other bk (GFA) AR
comprehensive income FOA 2 T 0
for the year - 419 439 - 858
At 31 March 2016 NE-REZRA=1—H (632) 6,631 (267) () 5,727
Credit to profit or loss AR R G &ﬁ #k14)
for the year (note 14) 126 = = = 126
Charge to other comprehensive M AEE
income for the year RN e = 62 431 = 493
At 31 March 2017 RoFZ—tHE=A=1—H (506) 6,693 164 (5) 6,346

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT



31. DEFERRED TAX - continued

32.

g R EE U R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
estimated unutilised tax losses of HK$93,288,000 (2016:
HK$177,629,000) available to offset against future profits.

The tax losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty

of future profit streams. During the year, unutilised
tax losses of HK$108,861,000 (2016: HK$nil) expired.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HKS$nil
(2016: HK$108,861,000) that will expire in the next three

years. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

liabilities for financial reporting purposes:

31.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

ELEDE — &

AR R A 4K B 593,288,000
JC (T FE—INAE 1 177,629,0004 9C) 2
il FF R B B IE 5 48 0T DA K 6 R
At A o H A TR e 1 I AR Y 2R AR
U8 > R SRR BLIE S 18 - RN
108,861,000%k TG (=& — /N4 - &k
JG) Z AR H) B TE R O A e
o e 58 Bl TE s 18 AL R I R R AR =
T 2 EEEB T (ZF—NF
108,861,000% 75) ° HoAth i 18 T M5 FR A
4l o

RAERIE (&) AEMRMEHEN S
AR

2017 2016

—E—+tHF TR N

HKS$’ 000 HK$’000

FET T
Deferred tax assets W SIE B JE (1,281) (1,281)
Deferred tax liabilities % HE B JA & 7,627 7,008
6,346 5,727

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER R.ANFREB - RERHEMERK

RECEIVABLES IE

2017 2016

—E—+tF TR N

HKS$’ 000 HK$000

FET T

Prepayments TE A} 3K T8 1,300 3,311
Other deposits HoAth % 45 1,548 1,836
Other receivables A R s K JE 16,079 5,811
18,927 10,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1,342,042,000 shares by way of placing at a placing price
of HK$0.225 per placing share. The whole amount of net
proceeds were used as general working capital and prospective

plans for future expansion of the Group.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. [B 7%
Number of shares Amount
RO EE gl
2017 2016 2017 2016
TR | ZEFRF | B | ZERE
’000 ’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR T TER T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 4 % i {E0.10%5 7G 2 % 48 i
Authorised: HE
At beginning of year AR 30,000,000 | 10,000,000 3,000,000 1,000,000
Increase on 20 August 2015 ANEF—HNEANAZTH
o - 20,000,000 - 2,000,000
At end of year AR B 30,000,000 30,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: O AT AR -
At beginning of year AW 6,710,214 4,473,476 671,021 447,348
Issue of shares on 10 April 2015 A = F— AP0 A + H 847
(Note 1) ety (1) - 2,236,738 - 223,673
Issue of shares on 29 August WZE—=RNEANAZTILH
2016 (Note 2) BATIRA (Hi7E2) 1,342,042 — 134,204 -
At end of year TR AF 4 8,052,256 6,710,214 805,225 671,021
Notes: BiF5E
(1) On 10 April 2015, the Company allotted and issued (1) AE-TEMNHA+H - AL AR
2,236,737,979 shares by way of rights issue at a subscription 38 1 T 2 i A R B B 430,28 T
price of HK$0.28 per rights share on the basis of one rights Z R M I B B B 4T2,236,737,979
share for every two shares held. For the year ended 31 March JBe Pl Ay > A E B A B
2016, approximately 35% and 39% of the net proceeds have PEBE — AL Ry o B F —N
been used to support the Group’s money lending business FEEZHA=E+T—HIEFEE > #135% K
and margin financing business, respectively. The remainder 399% 14 Jfr A5 75 JEL I 4 2 43 Al R 52
of approximately 26% of the net proceeds have been used for T A B [ 14 0 S IR R 4 i
the general working capital of the Group. ST o HBR #2691 T 15 3 JH 1 4
EIEA LR —fEEE -
(2) On 29 August 2016, the Company allotted and issued (2) e AN /AN & iy ol | = I N

23w DA B O 2 4% A IR ]
0.225%s ot 2 Bt B 18 o 3% & ¥ 17
1,342,042,000/8 & #3 BT 15 3K 6 15
O AMAE - REE GG KA
A AR A o 2 TH AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.

35.

ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

34. BRrERA R H M BN KE

2017 2016
ZE-tF | “EF-AF
HK$’ 000 HKS$°000
FET T T
Accruals JE 2 5,471 4,923
Other payables JCAth JE A5} 3 TE 4,699 2,544
10,170 7,467
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. B RESTE

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 16
May 2002 has expired on 5 June 2012. The Company has
adopted a new share option scheme (“Option Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 August 2012. On
20 August 2015, the refreshment of scheme mandate limit
under the Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting by way of
an ordinary resolution. As at 31 March 2017, 671,021,393
shares of the Company might fall to be allotted and issued
under the Option Scheme. The major terms of the Option

Scheme are summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for eligible participant to work with
commitment towards enhancing the value of the
Company and the shares for the benefit of the
shareholders of the Company and to retain and attract
persons whose contribution are or may be beneficial to

the growth and development of the Group.

ARAFRZFER AR N HRA
BTN - NH R
HIE o AN A ERBER -F—4F
ANHZ AV H @SR RRE R —IH
T 0 R T B (T A RE ST B D) o R
TE—FAENAZTH s AN R
AR AR e b L R R
I V4 B I e RE T ) I T 2 R B R
RE - N F—LFE=H=+—H"
671,021,393 74 28 5] I A 7T AR 45 1 ik
HE T &) 7 DA BC 5% A AT o W ROHE HT 1
ZF BT

() W HE S B B TR BB S E s 2
BB GRTA N F B H Ay 2 8
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HE_Z

—tEZA=+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(i) The eligible participants of the Option Scheme

include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holding an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and (c) any such
other persons (including but not limited to supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, contractor, business
partner or service provider of the Group or any
Invested Entity) who in the absolute discretion of the
Board of Directors has contributed or will contribute

to the Group.

(iii) The maximum number of shares which may be issued

upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

(iv) The total number of shares which may be issued upon

v)

exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the

shares of the Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

(vi) There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

(vii) A share option may be exercised at any time during a

period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
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w2 HE (R EEM]) 2/
AT S U B (A sy 2 B i
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36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(viii) The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 5 business days from the date of the offer

of grant of the share option.

(ix) The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

a. the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grang

b. the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately

preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and
c.  the nominal value of the share of the Company.

(x)  The Option Scheme will expire on 23 August 2022.

There was no share option granted to eligible participants
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting HK$857,000 (2016:
HK$513,000), are charged to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

35.

36.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

BREE &

(viii) 2 B85 T ¢ A0 O PR HE - O 280 AR 42
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

37. COMMITMENTS

(a) Lease commitments
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
office properties, berth, car park and staff quarter
which fall due as follows:

37. &I
(@) BHEE

I [ 25 R TN

TR SR > A 42 R AT AR
N EYHE AL ALK
B T A 5 1) 5878 A 4 19 R 20 de (i
EREZFMHE M

2017 2016

—E—tHF TR

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

FET Tisoo

Within one year — AR 399 804
In the second to fifth B OEREHEN

years inclusive (B35 B W AF) - 268

399 1,072

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties, berth,
car park and staff quarter. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of one year and rentals are fixed for an

average of one year.

The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future

minimum lease payments:

A0 L 40 2 26 7 B L
T E A
BT @ M 2 4 o FLA DL
¥y — 4 2 LW R G+ TR 4 O T
) 45— B o

A LE 3] 75 i RN

TR OR > BLR A 4R Tt A
J5 BT 58T 2 5 #9109 R A Fe A A B
A

2017 2016

ZB-tF | F N

HK$’ 000 HK$°000

FTHERT T ¥ o0

Within one year — R 324 544
In the second to fifth years RS NAEN

inclusive (HiEEREME) 40 84

364 628

Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years

and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. COMMITMENTS - continued
(b) Loan commitments

The Group also had the following loan commitments

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

37. &K —1&
(b) BHEE
7 4 [ R4 B R R DL B K

at the end of the reporting period: TR
2017 2016
—E-tF| CF AR
HKS$’ 000 HK$°000
FET Tt
Within one year —4F 80,100 12,150
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEHEA

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

AT AR (E 2 & & O &R > fEA A
B JE 5 SR AT 5 B 2 KA

2017 2016
—B-tF | ZEF-AE
HKS$’ 000 HKS$’000
TERT T T

Hong Kong ik
Leasehold land 0+ 73,906 76,347
Building BF 34,240 34,486
108,146 110,833

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also
secured by charges over clients’ pledged securities of
fair value of approximately HK$980,960,000 (2016:
HK$1,494,608,000) as at 31 March 2017 and corporate

guarantees issued by the Company.

o R F—LHE=H=1+T—H>
REMEZ WATE SN N ARMELN
%45980,960,000%5 ot (& — /N 4F ¢
1,494,608,000%5 70) 2 & 7 B 3% %
DA R AN 78 N R B AR VR SR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_Z—tF=A=+—"BLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group had the following related party transactions during

the year:

Name of related party
BEATHE £8

Messrs. Hung Hon Man,
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie,
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony,
Hung Sui Kwan, Cheng Wai Ho,
Lung Hon Lui, Ho Kwok Kwan,
Ng Hon Sau, Larry, Kam Leung
Ming, their close family
members and a controlling entity
BEEE SO~ A AR
E RS e ~ Y a3 e 4 -
AR e A - BRIV A -
o] B 4 e A - SRS
Hremked  HEZ
BEm KGN A UK — [
P E

Messrs. Lung Hon Lui,
Ho Kwok Kwan, Kam Leung
Ming, Ng Hon Sau, Larry,
Hung Hon Man, Hung Sui Kwan,
their close family members and
an entity contolled by
Hung Hon Man
HEVE B SR - T8 e A
B ed - REAeE -
BE SR
e A~ R
RE R A U K — ] h
TR VB SCHE T 0 R

Mr. Hung Hon Man’s associate

WEEAEZHENL

Mr. Lung Hon Lui’s associate

BEEE R B Z BB N+

Nature of transaction

REME

Commission income (Note i)

WA (B aED)

Interest income (Note ii)

R B WA (B i)

Rental income (Note iii)

H e WA (B 5Eiii)

Consultancy services (Note iv)

BB 5 (B Eiv)

39. BEALRS
I S A S 0 25 A 3 458 T 4 R 2 A2
5 B G SR AN > A 45 T A 4R R
RN

2017

—E-t5

HKS$’ 000
FHET

1,692

67

504

300

E1T R

2016

=

HK$’000
T

1,476

119

504

300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

continued

Notes:

(i) Commission was charged at rates ranging from 0.1%
to 0.15% (2016: 0.1% to 0.15%) on the total value of

transactions.

(i) Interest was charged at fixed rates ranging from 7.2360% to
9.2520% (2016: 7.2360% to 9.2520%) on the outstanding

balance of margin loans.

(iii) Monthly rental fee was charged at HK$42,000 (2016:

HK$42,000).

(iv) Consultancy fee was charged at arm’s length with reference to

the workload and estimated costs to be incurred.

The related party transactions as disclosed above were

exempted from the reporting, announcement and

independent sharecholders’ approval requirements as

continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

39. EALTRE &

i -

() HEHIEZESBMEZ0.1%%50.15% (—
FE N 1 0.1%%F0.15%) YHL -

(i) F BB %7.2360%%9.2520% (&
—NAF 1 7.2360%429.2520% ) Z [ E
2R R A 4 SR 2 R B A BRI

(i) & H Wz 4 F542,0009 o6 (- F
—INAFE 1 42,000 00) o

(iv) B 2 T 4% 20 J RIS 258 T AR A
Al 5 Bk A5 2 BAR THT LI o

I €3 Fd i UNSR PR LN
TR S 14ATETE N A B FRF A R T 5L
Ty 2 W~ O M 0 ST B AR E 2 K

JE ©

EEEEE > HH
A B B BT AE 2
e

2017 2016

—E-tE| S AR

HK$’ 000 HK$°000

FHET T# T

Short-term employee benefits FL IR B AR 4,886 7,831
Post-employment benefits Rl 1 1% A8 A 111 132
4,997 7,963

The remuneration of directors and other members of

key management is determined by the performance of

individuals and market trends.

A % H At LR 2B 2 R 1%
N R T35 3 €
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

40. X2 7] 2 B B AR 3R

2017 2016
—E—tfF TR RN
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT T#IT
Non-current assets IF I B =
Property and equipment I EN G ] 20 -
Unlisted investments in i) NP
subsidiaries (Note 1) I LETHHE (FfaEL) 1,844,473 501,679
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ff J& 2\ m] R K 93,156 475,423
1,937,649 977,102
Current assets i B A E
Tax recoverable AT i [ A 202 202
Deposits and prepayments i 5 e FAT ARIH 500 505
Amounts due from subsidiaries i & 2 = R gk 1,977,305 3,225,509
Bank balances — general WATH B — —RIRF
accounts and cash T 4 297,011 823
2,275,018 3,227,039
Current liabilities i B= -t
Accrued charges and other JEEF1 2 ) e At
payables E A5} R T 2,254 1,511
Amounts due to subsidiaries UG R 512,735 653,978
514,989 655,489
Net current assets I B R E 1,760,029 2,571,550
Net assets % E FHE 3,697,678 3,548,652
Capital and reserves AR I At A
Share capital lil&zN 33 805,225 671,021
Reserves ot 2,892,453 2,877,631
Total capital and reserves AR K At i AR E 3,697,678 3,548,652
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

40.

g R EE U R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

RAR 2 BRI K- &

Note 1: Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries Mgkl . RME AR ZIE BT R E QL
are deemed capital contribution amounting to 60,840,000 7T (& — N4 -
HK$60,840,000 (2016: HK$60,840,000). The capiral 60,840,000 ) Z HLAE Hi o il
contribution represents the imputed interest on interest gfﬁ%\ﬁai’z W%%ﬂj—(?ﬁ (B4
free amounts due from subsidiaries which are not expected K@ﬁ\ ﬁi > %ﬁ;iﬁﬂ‘lﬂ[ﬁ] A A
to be recovered within 12 months from the end of the ) ZAEHALS. -
reporting period.

Movement in reserves RE2E

Share Special Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R EER BHlfRE REERN k]
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T Ti#x T

Balance at 1 April 2015 AZR-ANENA—-HZ &R 2,280,969 194,549 32,420 2,507,938

Profit for the year AL A = - 105,668 105,668

Shares issued under rights REZZF—TFEMA+H

issue on 10 April 2015 AR H R m e BT Rh 402,613 - = 402,613

Transaction cost attributable Bz

to issue of shares TEAE 225 A (4,384) = = (4,384)

Dividend paid EMRE - - (134,204) (134,204)

Balance at 31 March 2016 REF-AEZA=+—H2 5k 2,679,198 194,549 3,884 2,877,631

Profit for the year A A - - 175,114 175,114

Shares issued under placing RIEREMC #1T2 Bb 167,755 - - 167,755

Transaction cost attributable BT RO 2 TEAG 250 Ak

to issue of shares (3,020) - - (3,020)

Distribution in specie (Note 2) EW R (i) (163,981) = = (163,981)

Dividend paid A E - - (161,046) (161,046)

Balance at 31 March 2017 REF-LE=A=T-HZER 267995 194,549 17,952 2,892,453

Note 2: Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,

the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject
to the provisions of its memorandum or articles of
association and provided that immediately following the
distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

WfaE2 - MRS HELFE > ARA 2K
3 it A T A7 A Ak B R A B A
JUNGE SC 2 R T 1) FBE S 20 IR BT LA
IREEIC S - R I A O W AE B UR
% i B4R RE A0 B Ao JHL I o 25 i
M B AR -
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. B A BF1E

Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fi% ARBEAZHERE
WEARER HRE LS it &5 ERTRAERA Aot IERE
2017 2016
I3-tf “E-RE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest interest
ERER MEER AHELR MR
% % % %
AL BEAR  EAM AR
Get Nice Financial Group Cayman Islands Ordinary HK$25,000,000 72,99 = 100 = Investment holding
Limited
GEEMEMARARY  WEER Lk 25,000,001 1C BERR
Get Nice Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 18510000 = 72.99 - 100 Investment holding
ERECRE LR 10,000% ¢ BERR
Get Nice Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$860.000.000 = 72.99 = 100 Securities dealing and
(‘GNS”) Non-voting HK$40,000,000 broking and securities
deferred shares margin financing
(Note 1)
EiERERAR Bk T 860,000,000 1C whBERELER R
(T bk ) EREEEER 400000008 T wAREEHE
(Wit
Get Nice Futures Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 = 72.99 = 100 Futures and options
Limited broking
GAEERAR Fit Tk 20,000,000 ¢ UEY UL R
Get Nice Capital Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000,000 - 72.99 - 100 Corporate finance
Limited services
GRBEARAR Fik ik 10,000,000% 7% bEM MR
Get Nice Asset Management ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 - 72.99 - 100 Assets management
Limited services
BIEEERARAY  BE Lk 2,000,000 ¢ B gy
Quality Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,000 5 100 = 100 Property holding
TRAERRAH Fik il 9,000 ¢ WERH
Get Nice Finance Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 s 100 = 100 Money lending
Limited
S ARAF Fik il W &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES —

continued

Name of subsidiary

WEARZE

Allex International Limited

SXRBARLA

Prime Pacific Investments
Limited

Steppington Holdings
Limited

Pacific Challenge Securities
Limited

KTEREEFARAA

Pacific Challenge Futures
Hong Kong Limited
KTHEREHEARAT

Pacific Challenge Management

Services Limited

Grace Field Limited
NG

Place of

incorporation

AR S

Hong Kong
£

British Virgin
Islands
EBREAHE
British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
i
Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
Ak

Class of
shares held
fik
]

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk
Ordinary
Tk
Ordinary
il
Ordinary
Tl
Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. HEB R AFHE &

Issued and Proportion of
fully paid ownership interest
share capital held by the Group Principal activities
ARBRALRER
ERTRAERA BAlt IEEK
2017 2016
-g-tf “ZT-RE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest interest
ERBE BEEZ HUES  MUER
% % % %
gokk  EAL  EAR AR
HKS$10,000 = 100 = 100 Holding of motor vehicles
10,0008 10 PR
Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
E REER
US5$10,000 - 72,99 - 100 Tnvestment holding
10,000 10 REER
HK$60,000,000 - 72.99 - 100 Inactive
60,000,000 76 BETTER
HK$10,000,000 = 72.99 = 100 Inactive
10,000,000 7C RELER
HK$2 - 100 - 100 Property holding
i WERH
HK$2 - 72.99 - 100 Property holding
W WER
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES —

41. HEBRAFE &

continued
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Group
fi ARERRCHER
WEARZHE AfRTeE  RGEH ERTRARKRK [zl
2017 2016
“E-tE Y SN
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest  interest interest interest
ERER BEER AREd MR
% % % %
AR BAR AR AAM
Gainventure Holdings British Virgin Ordinary USs1 100 - 100 -
Limited Islands
EREARE  HEk 1%
Clever Switch Limited British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100
Islands
EREAHE  FER 1%
Get Nice Development Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000,000 - 100 = 100
Limited
BRRRARLR &b EiEk 1,000,000 72
Joyful Villa Limited British Virgin Ordinary Us$1 - 100 - 100
Islands
EREAHE  HEk 1€
Venturecorp [nvestment British Virgin Ordinary US§1 - 100 - 100
Limited Islands
EREAHE  FEk B
Rich Mount Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100
REARAR &k Tk 17T
NobleNet Limited British Virgin Ordinary Us$1 - 72.99 - 100
Islands
EREARE  LEk 1%
Superior Capital Assets British Virgin Ordinary US$1 = 72.99 - 100
Limited Islands
EREARE  LER 1E7
Get Nice International Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1,000 - 80 - 80
Limited
GHERARA &k Rl 1,000 7T

182
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Principal activities

TREE

Investment holding
BERR
Investment holding
i
Investment holding
BRER
Investment holding
BEHR
Investment holding
i

Property holding
kS

Tnvestment holding
BEsk
Investment holding
e

Properties development

VES {2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES —

continued

Name of subsidiary

WEARZE

cCapitalist.com (Asia) Limited

BRE (W) ARAH

Dragon Rainbow Limited

More Profit International
Limited

Great Right Holdings Limited

EERRARAA

Rise Fortune Group Limited

FREMARAA

Get Nice Investment Limited

GHSERRA

Group Success [nternational

Limited

Get Nice Entertainment
Limited

GHBREARAR

Place of

incorporation

AR S

Hong Kong
£

British Virgin
[slands
ERRLHE

British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE

British Virgin
Islands
EBRLHE

British Virgin
Islands
ERELHE

Hong Kong
A

British Virgin
Islands
SRRLHE

British Virgin
[slands
ERELHE

Class of
shares held
fik
]

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk
Ordinary
Tk
Ordinary
Rk
Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Ordinary

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. HEB R AFHE &

Issued and Proportion of
fully paid ownership interest
share capital held by the Group Principal activities
ARBRALRER
ERTRAERA BAlt IEEK
2017 2016
S e
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest interest interest interest
ERBE BEEZ HUES  MUER
% % % %
gokk  EAL  EAR AR
HK$19,500,000 - 72.99 - 100 Inactive
19,500,000% ¢ BETTER
Uss1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
E REER
US$10,000 - 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
10,000 10 REER
USS1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
1#% RE#R
U5$50,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
50,000% 10 RERTER
HK$1 - 7299 - 100 Holding of yacht
15T HA R
USS1 = 100 - 100 Tnvestment holding
%% BE#R
US$1 - 100 - 100 [nactive
5 BENER
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - 41. B A B F1F — &
continued
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fi ARERRCHER
WEAREH AfRTeE  RGEH BETRMEREK [zl IERK
2017 2016
ZE-tf i
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest  interest interest interest
ERRE BERE AREG NEER
% % % %

AR BAR AR AAM

Peak Prospect Limited British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Island
EREARE  HEk 1% BB
Vast Cheer Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK§2 - 100 - 100 Property holding
&k Bk 2w EERIES
Billion Times Limited British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - - Investment holding
Island
EREAHE  LEk X BERR
Better Dynamic Limited British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Islands
ERESHE  HEk 1% BEHR
Treasure Advantage Limited ~ British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Islands
EREAHE  HER 3 BErER
Get Nice Real Estate Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$4,000,000 - 60 - 00 Property agency
EFERARA &k Bk 4,000,000 ¢ HERSE
Great China Company Limited  Macau Quota MOP100,000 - 65 = 65 Inactive
aapital
Kb EHRAH ar RHEA 100,000 7 ¥ HENER
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES — 41. fHB A BFIF &
continued
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid ownership interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Group Principal activities
fi ARERRCHER
WEARER AfRIeE  RGEH BETRMERE [Zpibe IERK
2017 2016
It 3 “E-NE
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
interest  interest interest interest
ERRE BERE ANEG NEER
% % % %

AR BAR AR AAM

Gain Peak Asia Limited British Virgin Ordinary Us$1 - 100 - - Investment holding
Island
EREARE  LEk 1#7 RERR
Infinite Treasure Group Limited  British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - - Investment holding
Island
EREARE  LER b3 BEER
Profit Union Holdings British Virgin Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - - Investment holding
Corporation Island
ERELRE Wk E3 BERR
Ace Way Business Limited British Virgin Ordinary Us§1 - 100 - - Investment holding
Island
EREARE  LER 1#7 RERRK
Jumbo Excel Corporation  British Virgin Ordinary Us$1 - 100 = - Investment holding
Island
EREARE  LER b3 BEER
Access Mission Limited British Virgin Ordinary USs1 - 100 - - Inacrive
Island
LRECRE TR E3 HerER
Bowell Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - - Droperty holding
HEARAR kit Hk 15 kB
Get Nice Property Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - - Inactive
Management Company
BREEAERAA &k ik 17 AR
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES —

continued

Notes:

(1)

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by two
directors of the Company, carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

41. HEBRAFE &

Wik

(1)

A2 T W 4 o R 2 AR AR
HE B E B b AR OIS, R S
T B A et 8 5 AT AT B RO i 3 4 sk
Sl K s BT o AT RRE > A
i 78 5 A UR T30 98 R N S
P TR G R N 2 S LA
A A B 98 1£1,000,000,000,0009
JCZ TR R A N 4T L
B34 By 2 EAUE A BRI B 8%
JE A T AL AR A R A 1
BT RS S5 2 R A 3 A R
NI X [ sl s il e
B B RS BT R 2 LB AR o

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned (2) I FRE A I 12 IBOHE 2 ) A< 48 1 JE
subsidiaries of the Group that have non-controlling interests: g o i) PR
Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting Profit (loss)
Principal rights held by allocated to Accumulated
Place of place of non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary incorporation business interests interests interests
FERERRALZ 2EF
FRREL FERBEZ iR
WELRER EMAILE  EREXNY REZELA A (E8) i
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF CEFRF ZE-tF CEFRFE ZE-tF CEFRE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ThR T AR TH#T
Get Nice Financial Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong 27.01% = 74,030 = 978,150 -
Group Limited (Note 1) MERE it
HremERgRAR
(Hit1)
Great China Company Macau Macau 35% 35% 16 661 29,164 29,148
Limited i il
KA A R ]
Immaterial non-controlling interests of Get Nice Real Estate Limited (Note 2) 191 496
S EEARARRNFERFERES 72
Immaterial non-controlling interests of Get Nice International Limited () 2
S BT A TR RIB A SR R R £
1,007,503 29,642
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES -
continued

Notes:

(1)

2)

With the listing of the shares of GNFG on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 8 April 2016,

(i) an amount of approximately HK$1,506,775,000 was
capitalised by the issuance of 1,982,445,519 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each from GNFG to the Company;

(ii) 167,755,348 ordinary shares of GNFG of HK$0.01
each were declared by the Company as a special
dividend by way of distribution in specie to the
Company’s qualifying sharcholders; and

(iii) 507,554,481 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued by GNFG at HK$1 per share to the
public for a total gross proceeds of approximately

HK$507,554,000.

With the issuance of GNFG’s shares to the public and
the Company’s qualifying shareholders, the Company’s
equity interest in GNFG has been diluted from 100%
to 72.99%. Although there is a reduction in the equity
interest in GNFG, the Company is still able to exercise
control over GNFG and the effect of the reduction in the
Company’s interest in GNFG of HK$443,753,000, being
the difference between the fair value of consideration of
HK$507,554,000 and the non-controlling interest in GNFG
of HK$951,307,000, has been recognised directly in reserves.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the non-controlling
interests contributed HK$400,000 to Get Nice Real Estate

Limited.

HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

41. HEB R AFHE &

Fif 5

(1)

Wi 25 5 < W ) B Y — A — N AR Y
PEANE R v) R

() & A R AR N R B AT
1,982,445,519 % 5 J§0.01% o6 2
I % > 471,506,775,0003 7T Z
SR REAR

(i) AN A AR F A OGS R E R
Ph167,755,348 1 15 1B T {H0.01 75
TCZ G R R AR R E Y
SR URFERI RS 5 K

(Gii) &5 U7 < Rl ke 5 JIR 100 T 109 18 4% T
N RAEETT507,554,481 1B A THIE
0.01#5 0.2 4 B i > iz

ST A5 5K SE AR 40 £5507,554,0005

p

o

Wi N R AR N R G RS RO R
1T 56 0 & R RE Y > A2 R &5 4 4
Tl 1 HE B A2 100%88 3 2£72.99% o
{4 468 e 4 R BERE DRk 2 > ELAR A ]
AT 8% Rl 400 34 465 Loy 4 AT o B AR
Oy B G5 0 4 R ME 25 N [ 2 B
F4443,753,000%5 70 » A AIE A Rl
507,554,000 70 BT &5 - 42 fil 2 IF ¥ 11k
P £2951,307,000% T2 M =5 > B
B G PR

BE_F-LE=HA=+—HIL#

BE 5 IF 1 I I o ) A 0 SR R
H #5400,000%5 G o
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

42. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 42, W BE — BB 2 ]
On 24 November 2015, the Group subscribed for 100% of N _E—HE+—H _+WM™H » A4
the issued share capital of a property investment company ] 224,560,000 70 2 fAE 52 1§ — 9
for a consideration of HK$24,560,000. The amount of ERENTZ100%0C 2474 o ILIE
bargain purchase gain arising as a result of the acquisition W i 7 AR e MR M R i £ 12,753,000
was HK$12,753,000. WG -
Consideration transferred FrEZE2RE
HK$’000
T#T
Cash 4 24,560
Total W=t 24,560
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of RIBARZRAARERAZFIWEE
acquisition at fair value were as follows: EREEWMT
HK$’000
T#IT
Investment property BEY) 37,300
Tax recoverable A i [ A T 13
Total At 37,313
Bargain purchase arising on acquisition: WRBEECREBE:
HK$°000
Tt
Consideration transferred J i 2 A 24,560
Less: net assets acquired B I 2 B T E (37,313)
Bargain purchase arising on acquisition W i A 2 R M (12,753)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of the subsidiary BEZME AT 2R SR FE
HK$°000
T#C
Cash consideration paid e A B AUE 24,560
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HE_Z—+F=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

43. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 43. HE—ERBE AT
On 10 August 2015, the Group completed the disposal of R FE-RFENA T H > A EE N
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Pacific Challenge Secretarial HEH 2 EME AR KRN E
Services Limited. The net assets of Pacific Challenge R A R W o T L 2 R 2 R
Secretarial Services Limited at the date of disposal were as AR RA S B G E T
follows:

10 August 2015
—F - NAA+H

HK$°000
T#TT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over Bk L HEHIAE 2 B K&
which control was lost: BRI T
Investment property BEY) 9,100
Deposits e 18
Bank balances SRAT &5 B 2
Tax payable A o I ()
Deferred tax liability IR S B TH £ A (133)
Net assets disposed of i 2 E AT E 8,985
HK$°000
T T
Consideration received: B ARE
Cash received OIS I 4 7,509
Total consideration received Bk 48 A A 7,509
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE-BHWEBARZEE
Consideration received B AW 7,509
Net assets disposed of Jr o TR (8,985)
Loss on disposal 2R (1,476)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRESRAFRE
Cash consideration B AE 7,509
Less: Bank balances disposed of B BT 2 BRAT & BR (2)
7,507
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HE-_T—+tF=A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 March 2017

44. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 44. REHRSBR
PERIOD
In May 2017, an indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary AR —-LHERH > AEF—MEE
of the Group with net asset value of approximately 316 £760,000,000%5 7T 2 [H 4% IF 4> & Fff
HK$60 million was disposed for a cash consideration of J& N H B £ LLA70,000,000 T 2 B
approximately HK$70 million resulting a gain on disposal HEE . EA B4 £510,000,000%
of approximately HK$10 million. JG ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
HE=PA=t-HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-ZF SF-NF SZ-nF SZ-RF | ZE-tE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’ 000
T#T T T T ThER
(Note 1 and 3) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)
(WFELR3) (WzEL) (HzED) (Ff5E2) (K&t2)
(restated)
(BEF)
RESULTS &
Continuing operations BELCERE
Revenue s 175,464 227,818 362,581 581,242 513,600
Profit before taxation ol 7l i 122,643 190,362 316,824 543,938 488,577
Taxation BE (18,387) (26,74) (47,745) (80,272) (73,291)
Profit for the year from REFEREEH 2
continuing operations A i A 104,256 163,617 269,079 463,666 415,286
Discontinued operations C& I ER
(Loss) profit from discontinued KEERIEK
operations (B54R) i Al (213,167 498,137 - - -
(Loss) profit for the year A (R Al (108,911) 661,754 269,079 463,666 415,286
As at 31 March
R=A=1-H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
SE-ZE ZF-NE ZF-RE ZF-RE | ZB-tF
HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$’ 000
TH#T T T T TER
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)
(FEED) (H3EL) (WD (H5E2) (H&2)
(restated)
(BEF)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets HERE 4,949,234 5,034,248 5,539,199 6,048,618 6,843,343
Total liabilities AR (1,228,141)  (1,153,051)  (1,703,639)  (1,179,617) (954,968)
Toral equity g 3,721,093 3,881,197 3,835,560 4,869,001 5,888,375
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Notes:

1

@)

(€)

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been
extracted from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

financial position as set out in the Company’s annual report.

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 have been extracted from the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position which are

set out on pages 76, 77, 78 and 79 respectively.

The Group completed its disposal of hotel complex and certain
assets on 17 July 2013. Accordingly, the operating results of the
hotel and entertainment business for the years ended 31 March

2013 and 2014 were disclosed as discontinued operations.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#F#=RAER AT

..

(1)

)

3

H

AL EBBMERERAEITEK AR S
AR R T 2 R 1R A T A A T i £ 3R
Btz BB IR UL -

RERBE T LIFERZF—NF =
=+ H IR EE A E KA
A4 Sk B ARG~ 77 > 78 K79 E BT #
Z AR R AR B H A A TR i 35 R R A S B
TR -
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